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foreword
Welcome to the prospectus for the 2012-2016
series of five year debentures at Wimbledon’s
No.1 Court. It is an invitation to become an
integral part of The Championships, arguably
the world’s most prestigious tennis tournament.
The debenture system, introduced in 1920, has
helped to fund the development of the facilities
at the Grounds, ensuring Wimbledon remains
at the forefront of international tennis.
No.1 Court itself was built with the support
of debenture holders, giving tens of thousands
of people the opportunity each summer to
experience the time-honoured thrill of The
Championships.
These pages offer an insight into the privilege
of being a No.1 Court debenture holder during
The Championships, including the experience
of a single memorable day of play in 2010.
We look forward to welcoming you as a debenture
holder at No.1 Court and to share with you ten
memorable days of tennis each year.

wimbledon – where
tennis history is made
Of the four great tennis tournaments in the
world, Wimbledon has always held a place as
the first amongst equals. The tournament’s
history is inextricably linked to that of the sport
itself. On its hallowed grass courts, legends
have been made and records re-written.
Even by Wimbledon’s exceptional standards,
the 2010 Championships was one to remember.
The uninterrupted fine weather on the courts of
SW19 offered a glorious backcloth to the tennis.
A memorable visit by Her Majesty The Queen
endorsed the position that The Championships
hold in the imagination of the sporting world.
And then that most memorable match.
After 183 games, 11 hours and 5 minutes of
play, John Isner finally clinched victory after an
epic encounter with Nicolas Mahut – and in so
doing breaking record after record.
Never before have as many games in a single
match been played in a single day. And then,
in just a moment, it was lost – and won.
But remarkable though it is, it’s not only
the action on court that makes Wimbledon
so singular. From the beautifully manicured
grounds to the traditional strawberries and
cream, it is an experience to be savoured.
An invitation to become a debenture holder
at Wimbledon is the opportunity to be present at
arguably the most prestigious tennis tournament
in the world and experience moments of
sporting history.

The Renshaw
Restaurant

no.1 court
an exclusive retreat
For true tennis fans, can there be many better
ways to enjoy a day at Wimbledon in the
presence of the world’s greatest tennis players
than to experience the special hospitality
offered to debenture holders?
And from 2011, No.1 Court debenture holders
will have more options for dining and socialising
than ever before, with the opening of an
additional restaurant and bar.

The Lounge

Relax before play begins with a glass of
Champagne in The Lounge. Savour an indulgent
three-course luncheon in the sanctuary of The
Renshaw Restaurant. Under the new covered
terraces, take a break from the action over a
casual meal in The Veranda Restaurant or a
refreshing drink in The No.1 Bar – the choice
is yours.
Whatever your preference, as a No.1 Court
debenture holder, we hope that you will find the
enhanced range of facilities makes the day even
more memorable.

The new No.1 Bar
(artist’s impression)

The new Veranda
Restaurant
(artist’s impression)

an established
reception

The Renshaw
Restaurant

Our existing facilities for No.1 Court debenture
holders will continue to offer a choice of food
and selected wines, within relaxed surroundings.
As part of the No.1 Court complex, but away
from the hustle and bustle of a day at The
Championships, The Renshaw and The Lounge
will still offer the chance to refresh, refuel and
reflect on the day’s play.
The Renshaw
Recently refurbished to high standards, The
Renshaw is even more comfortable than before,
offering a full dining service to debenture holders.
For an all-inclusive price you can enjoy lunch,
afternoon tea and its complimentary bar.
The Lounge
With views across a number of the outside
courts, The Lounge, with its bar and convenient
self-service café, offers the opportunity to
enjoy a casual meal or a cold drink.

The Lounge

One of the two new
covered terraces
(artist's impression)

an even warmer
welcome
Opening in 2011 are two new additions to
welcome No.1 Court debenture holders,
increasing the range of facilities and increasing
significantly their overall area.
The two new covered terraces will house a
restaurant and bar, allowing you to enjoy the
great British summer, whatever the weather
and in comfort. From the terraces you will be
able to enjoy the view of the outside courts and
surrounding parkland alike.
The Veranda
Under the shade of the awnings, The Veranda
will offer contemporary Italian cuisine. Whether
you choose a fresh salad, a tasty pasta or
something a little more adventurous, each will
be served to you at your table.

The new Veranda
Restaurant
(artist’s impression)

The new No.1 Bar
(artist’s impression)

The No.1 Bar
This modern, curved bar will be a great place
to relax with a cold drink at any time during the
day. Available to No.1 Court debenture holders,
we expect this bar will soon become a meeting
point where the events of the day are re-lived
and discussed.

An enviable view
Hewitt. Clijsters. Djokovic. Murray. Federer.
Sharapova. Williams. Nadal. Just some of the
top players who took their place on No.1 Court
in 2010.
As a No.1 Court debenture holder, your seat at
one of the world’s elite sporting events awaits.
A vantage point to watch some of the world’s
most admired players.
Then relax and refresh in the nearby debenture
facilities, before retaking your seat to watch the
action again.

Some of the top players who graced No.1 Court at The Championships in 2010

your seat awaits
One of the privileges for No.1 Court debenture
holders is taking your pick of some of the best
seats in the house. With your seats reserved for
the first ten days of The Championships, you’ll
enjoy a preferred position and an enviable view
of the world-class tennis before you.
Once your debenture purchase is confirmed,
you will be invited to indicate your preferred
seating sections. You will be allocated the same
seat (or set of seats) for the first ten days of
each year's Championships. The actual position
of your seats will rotate within your preferred
sections from year to year.

Quadrants A, B, C and D are in the open
Quadrants E, F, G and H are covered
Note: Restaurants, bars and other facilities for
No.1 Court debenture holders are located at
the south end of the No.1 Court stadium
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monday 28th june 2010
a day at the championships
Order of play
Kim Clijsters v Justine Henin
Novak Djokovic v Lleyton Hewitt
Paul-Henri Mathieu v Rafael Nadal

The scene is set
Long before your arrival, preparations are
already underway: the grass trimmed to a
meticulous 8mm, the white lines redrawn, the
nets strung taut, the strawberries piled high.

the day begins
As the crowds press through the gates, celebrate
the beginning of your day at The Championships.
From The Lounge or the new No.1 Bar, plan the
day of tennis ahead.
With a glass of Champagne in hand, the friendly
debate begins: will it be the comeback, the
siblings, the long-running rivalry, the crowd’s
favourite…?

Savour the moment
In the luxurious calm of The Renshaw, exclusive
to No.1 Court and Centre Court debenture
holders, for an all-inclusive price, enjoy a
fresh, seasonal menu and a choice of carefully
selected wines as you compare notes on The
Championships so far... knowing you can return
throughout the day.

Experience the thrill
Experience the astonishing speed, pace and
power at close quarters. Close enough to see
the steely gaze of the players as they battle for
supremacy on No.1 Court.
As a debenture holder you will have the
opportunity of occupying one of the most
sought after seats in the sporting world.

see titans do battle
As the day progresses, No.1 Court is the scene
of another great match.
Enjoy a former Wimbledon Champion match
his wits against one of the current stars of the
game. A past master and a pretender let loose
a barrage of punishing groundstrokes to produce
yet another memorable moment to savour.

discover TOMORROW’s
champions
Stroll among the outside courts as the next
generation of players vie for their own place
on No.1 Court, witnessing a preview of what’s
to come.

reflection
The umpire’s final calls have been made and the
nets rolled away. As the sun sets on an actionpacked day at Wimbledon, thoughts turn to
the day’s play – memories of that mighty serve,
a stunning smash and the crowd holding its
collective breath.
And as a No.1 Court debenture holder, you
delight at the thought that this is but one day
of many you can enjoy.

no.1 court debenture
series 2012-2016
For the true tennis enthusiast, Wimbledon
is arguably the sport’s most prestigious
tournament and a No.1 Court debenture one
of its ultimate privileges. This is an invitation to
The Championships, with a guaranteed seat at
the heart of the action.
It is also the chance to indulge yourself. A
special opportunity to enjoy The Championships
in a manner relatively few will ever experience.
We warmly invite you to consider the following
pages, and to take your place in No.1 Court.

This Prospectus and the enclosed Application Form are important.
If you are in any doubt about the action to take, you are recommended to seek your own personal
financial advice immediately from your stockbroker, solicitor, accountant or other independent
financial adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.
This document comprises a prospectus relating to the new No.1 Court Debentures to be issued
by The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc, prepared in accordance with the Prospectus Rules
of the Financial Services Authority made under section 73A of the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 and a separate Application Form for the Debentures. This Prospectus has been filed
with, and approved by, the Financial Services Authority and will be made available to the public
in accordance with Rule 3.2 of the Prospectus Rules.

The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc
Issue of up to 1,000 new No.1 Court Debentures 2012-2016

Investing in the Debentures involves certain risks. For a
discussion of certain factors that should be considered
in connection with an investment in the Debentures,
please see the section headed “Risk Factors” in Part 2
of this Prospectus.
No application has been made for the Debentures
to be admitted to listing or trading on any market.
Investment in an unquoted debenture of this nature,
being an illiquid investment, is speculative and involves
a degree of risk. The Debentures are an unsecured
debt of the Company and their value may increase or
decrease. They do not carry the right to any income.
The Debentures may not be a suitable investment for
all recipients of this Prospectus.
The procedure for application is set out in the enclosed
Application Form. Each application for a Debenture
is made on and subject to the information, terms and
conditions contained in this Prospectus. The application
list for the Debentures hereby offered will open at 12
noon on 26 April 2011 and will close at 3.00 pm on 10
June 2011 or such later date as the Company may decide.
Please also see the section headed “How to apply” at
paragraph 5 of Part 3 of this Prospectus.
Hawkpoint Partners Limited, which is authorised and
regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services
Authority, is acting exclusively for The All England Lawn
Tennis Ground plc in connection with the Debenture Issue
and no one else, and will not regard any other person as its
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client or be responsible to any other person for providing
the protections afforded to clients of Hawkpoint Partners
Limited or for advising any such person in relation to the
Debenture Issue or any other matter referred to herein.
You should rely only upon the information contained
in this Prospectus. Neither the Company, nor any of its
professional advisers, has authorised anyone to provide
you with different information. Neither the Company,
nor any of its professional advisers, is making an offer
of, or an invitation to purchase, any Debentures in any
jurisdiction where such an offer or invitation is prohibited.
You should not assume that the information in this
Prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date
of this Prospectus.
The Debentures referred to in this Prospectus have not
been and will not be registered under the US Securities
Act and unless such Debentures are registered under
the US Securities Act or sold pursuant to an available
exemption from the registration requirements of the US
Securities Act, they may not be offered or sold within the
United States, and any resale outside the United States
should be done in compliance with the safe harbor from
registration under the US Securities Act in Regulation S.
The Debentures are being sold to persons outside of the
United States in reliance on Regulation S and to a limited
number of "accredited investors" in the United States
pursuant to a private placement exemption from the
registration requirements of the US Securities Act.
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Deloitte LLP Chartered Accountants
2 New Street Square
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Instalment

First
Second

Date payable

Nominal
Value (£)
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10 June 2011
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–
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VAT* (£)

Total (£)

2,750

550

3,800

8,250

1,650

9,900

11,000

2,200

13,700

*VAT has been calculated at the rate currently due to be in force at the time that the relevant instalment
is payable.
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Part 1 – summary

This summary conveys the essential characteristics and
risks associated with the Debentures and the Company
and should be read as an introduction to this Prospectus.
Any decision to invest in the Debentures should be based
on consideration of this Prospectus as a whole.
If you bring a claim relating to the information contained
in this Prospectus before a court where English is not
the language in which proceedings are conducted, you
might have to bear the cost of translating this Prospectus
before the legal proceedings are commenced. Civil
liability attaches to the person(s) responsible for
this summary, but only if the summary is misleading,
inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with
other parts of this Prospectus.

1. Principal terms of the Issue
The Debenture Issue will consist of up to 1,000 Debentures
of a nominal value of £500 each issued at a premium of
£11,000 plus (subject as provided in Part 3 of the Prospectus)
VAT of £2,200 being a total cost of £13,700 each.
The total price will be payable in two instalments, the
first instalment of £3,800 upon application on or before
10 June 2011 and the second instalment of £9,900 on or
before 31 January 2012.
Subject to the Conditions, further details of which are
set out in Part 5 of this Prospectus, each Debenture will
confer on its registered holder the following:
Entrance to the Grounds and reserved no.1
Court seating
Each Debenture will carry the right of entrance for one
person, free of charge, to the Grounds and the right, free
of charge, to one reserved seat in the No.1 Court stand
for each of the first ten days on which play is scheduled
to take place at The Championships in 2012 and in every
year thereafter up to and including 2016.
Tickets allocated to No.1 Court debenture holders are
the only No.1 Court Championships tickets that are freely
transferable and can be sold on the open market.
The location of a Debenture Holder’s seat within the area
reserved for Debenture Holders will be determined each
year by ballot. Holders of Debentures will be given the
opportunity to express a preference as to their seating
sections within the area to be occupied by No.1 Court
Debenture Holders. The conditions of issue of tickets are
set out in Part 4 of this Prospectus.

The dates of The Championships and order of play
are determined at the discretion of the Committee of
Management of The Championships.
Use of the private Debenture Holders’
facilities
Each Debenture will carry, on each of the first ten days
during the 2012 to 2016 Championships, the right (subject
to compliance with the relevant dress code) of entrance
for one person to the private Debenture Holders’ facilities
including the No.1 Court Debenture Holders’ Lounge, The
Renshaw Restaurant (subject to advance reservation and
availability) and also new facilities, which will include The
Veranda Restaurant and The No.1 Bar which are currently
under construction and are expected to be completed
prior to the 2011 Championships. The Company reserves
the right to reconfigure the No.1 Court debenture facilities
from year to year in order to refine the offering to debenture
holders. No.1 Court Debenture Holders will continue to
have exclusive use of the areas currently reserved for
them within No.1 Court. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Debentures do not confer any rights of entrance to the
2012 Olympics tennis tournament or any other event held
at the Grounds apart from The Championships.
A car parking space during The Championships
Each Debenture will also carry the right, upon application
in advance, and subject to payment of a parking fee, to
a parking space in a car park made available for use by
debenture holders during The Championships.
Redemption and transfer
The Debentures will not carry interest, will be redeemable
at par in August 2016 (£500 per Debenture) and will be
unsecured. The Debentures will be registered and in
certified form and will be transferable using a stock transfer
form (and in the manner specified in the Conditions), but
the Company will have the right to refuse to register a
transfer without giving its reasons for the refusal.
Further information regarding the Debenture Issue is set
out in Part 3 of this Prospectus.

2. The Long Term Plan
Introduction
Debentures were first introduced in 1920 to fund the
purchase of part of the Company’s present grounds and
the building of Centre Court. Since then, the proceeds
from subsequent debenture issues have provided funding
for many significant improvements to the facilities at the
Grounds. In March 1993, the Company announced details
of the Long Term Plan, the aim of which is to improve
the quality of The Championships for all those involved,
and to ensure the continuation of The Championships as
arguably the premier tennis tournament in the world.
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Since 1993, the Club has made considerable progress,
particularly in relation to the redevelopment of Centre
Court and No.1 Court. It is currently envisaged that
the Long Term Plan in its current form will be completed
by 2012.
Recent development activity
Since 2006, the Company has completed the construction
of the new retractable roof over Centre Court and has
redeveloped many of the facilities within Centre Court
including new restaurants, bars and other facilities for
Centre Court debenture holders and the public.
In addition, there has been considerable redevelopment
of those parts of the Grounds to the south of Centre
Court, including the construction of a new Court 2, which
was used for the first time at the 2009 Championships,
and the construction of a new Court 3 which is scheduled
to be used for the first time at the 2011 Championships.
The Company is currently constructing terraces over
the south-west and south-east staircases of No.1 Court
which will accommodate a new restaurant and bar for
No.1 Court debenture holders on the same level as the
existing No.1 Court Debenture Holders’ Lounge. These
new terraces will significantly increase the quantity of
space available to No.1 Court Debenture Holders and
will, for the first time, provide outdoor space for eating,
drinking and relaxation.
Future development activity
The Company has planning consent to extend the
Millennium Building to provide significantly increased
space for the competitors which is designed to enhance
their experience of The Championships.

3. Information on the Company
The Company owns the tennis courts, grounds and
buildings, in Wimbledon, London SW19 (known as The
All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club) at which The
Championships are held. The shares of the Company are
currently owned in equal proportions by the Club and
the LTA. On 14 May 2009, the Club and the LTA entered
into an agreement for the sale by the LTA of its shares in
the Company to the Club and/or the Company for the
Club to become the sole shareholder. This agreement
is due to complete on 1 August 2013, conditional upon
the holding of The Championships in 2013. It is intended
that this agreement will be ultimately novated to The All
England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club Limited following
the proposed incorporation of the Club.

4. Background to and reasons for the
Issue and use of proceeds
The Company issues debentures for Centre Court
and No.1 Court, currently every five years, to fund the
continuing development of the facilities at the Grounds
for the benefit of all participants including spectators,
players, the media and debenture holders.
The Company has recently completed a series of major
improvements to Centre Court including the new roof
and other smaller projects, such as the development of
a new Court 2. In addition, a new Court 3 is scheduled to
come into operation at the 2011 Championships.
These improvements have been funded in part by the
most recent Centre Court debenture issue which took
place in 2009, and which raised £59.4 million net of VAT
and expenses, and the previous No.1 Court debenture
issue which took place in 2006, and which raised £8.7
million net of VAT and expenses. The Company has
funded the remainder of its expenditure through the
HSBC Loan Facility and its own operating cash flow.
In order to contribute to the funding and continued
implementation of the Long Term Plan in its current form,
and to the funding of future development activity, the
Company has decided to offer up to 1,000 Debentures
to raise approximately £11.2 million, net of VAT of £2.2
million and estimated expenses of £0.3 million.
The proceeds of the Debenture Issue will be used primarily
to repay amounts borrowed to date under the HSBC Loan
Facility. Proceeds may also be used to fund current and
future development activity including the new facilities
for No.1 Court debenture holders, the extension of the
Millennium Building and the new Court 3 and ancillary
buildings. There are a number of further projects which
are currently being considered by the Company, and
should the Company decide to pursue these, proceeds
from the Issue may go towards their development.
Pursuant to an agreement dated 14 May 2009 with the LTA,
the Club has agreed to purchase the LTA’s shares in the
Company. Under this agreement, the Club has the option
to alternatively procure the buy-back by the Company
of some or all of those shares. The Club is considering
whether to exercise this option and should it choose to
do so, some of the proceeds of the Debenture Issue may
be used for this purpose. Any such repurchase of shares
will be subject to the Company’s available resources and
funding requirements.

The Company derives substantially all of its income from
a facility fee payable by The Championships for the use
of the Grounds. The Company implements the Long Term
Plan and has historically retained all of its profits for this
purpose and has not paid dividends to its shareholders.
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The existing series of No.1 Court debentures will be
redeemed on 1 August 2011, at a total cost of £425,000.

5. Priority for next Centre Court
Debenture Issue
It is the Company’s intention that holders of this series
of No.1 Court Debentures who apply for the next series
of Centre Court debentures (covering the period 20162020) will, generally, receive a more favourable allocation
than applicants from the general public. This was the case
in the most recent Centre Court debenture issue for the
2011-2015 series, where the success rate for applicants
holding No.1 Court debentures was greater than that for
applications from the general public. It should be noted
that whilst it is the Company’s intention to prioritise
applications from No.1 Court Debenture Holders for
the next Centre Court issue, the likelihood of success
will depend upon the level of applications for that issue,
both from No.1 Court Debenture Holders and generally,
including the level of applications to renew from existing
Centre Court debenture holders which may limit the
number of debentures available to others.

Year ended 31 July

Turnover

2010
£000

2009
£000

14,726

10,713

Operating Profit/(loss)

3,194

(2,185)

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation

2,582

(4,840)

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
after taxation

1,320

(5,601)

As at 31 July

Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Current assets

2010
£000

2009
£000

329,696

330,864

360

360

22,081

13,427

Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year
(22,806)

(8,669)

Total assets less current liabilities

329,331

Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year

(55,425) (85,025)

335,982

Provisions for liabilities

(12,333) (13,204)

6. Summary of risk factors

Net assets

261,573

The Debentures may not be a suitable investment for all
recipients of this Prospectus.

8. How to apply

It is emphasised that no application has been made for
the Debentures to be admitted to listing or trading on
any market. Investment in an unquoted debenture of
this nature, being an illiquid investment, is speculative,
involving a degree of risk. It may be difficult to sell or
realise the Debentures or to obtain reliable information
about their value or the extent of the risks to which they
are exposed.
There are certain factors that may affect the Company’s
ability to fulfil its obligations under the Debentures. In
addition, there are certain factors which are material for
the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with
the Debentures. The Debentures do not generate any
income. The ability for Debenture Holders to sell their
Debentures may be limited as the Debentures themselves
are an illiquid investment and the Directors have the right
not to register Debenture transfers. A more detailed list
of risk factors is set out in Part 2 of this Prospectus.
7. Selected financial information relating to
the Group

237,753

If, after having read this Prospectus and the Application
Form, you decide to apply for new No.1 Court Debentures,
please complete the enclosed Application Form following
the instructions printed thereon.
Use the accompanying pre-paid envelope to send the
completed Application Form, together with your cheque
or banker’s draft for the first instalment, to the Debenture
Office, The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc, Church
Road, Wimbledon, London SW19 5AE to arrive by no
later than 3.00 pm on 10 June 2011 or such later date as
the Company may decide. The Company reserves the
right to allocate the new No.1 Court Debentures at its
sole discretion and no person will be entitled, as of right,
to priority application for any Debentures. However, it
is currently the intention of the Company that, generally,
holders of existing No.1 Court debentures will have
priority, equivalent to their existing holdings.
If you have any administrative queries in relation to the
new No.1 Court Debentures or how to apply, please
telephone the Debenture Office at the Company on
020 8971 2341.

The selected consolidated financial information below
has been extracted, without adjustment, from the audited
historical information set out in Part 8 of this Prospectus.
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Part 2 – risk factors

The Company believes that the following factors
may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under the
Debentures. All of these factors are contingencies which
may or may not occur and the Company is not in a
position to express a view on the likelihood of any such
contingency occurring.
In addition, factors which are material for the purpose
of assessing the market risks associated with the
Debentures are also described below.
Prospective investors should also read the detailed
information set out elsewhere in this Prospectus and reach
their own views prior to making any investment decision.

1. Introduction
You should consider carefully the specific risk factors set
out below, in addition to the other information contained
in this Prospectus before making an investment decision
in relation to the Debenture Issue. The principal risks and
uncertainties are described below. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known by the Company, or
that the Company currently considers to be immaterial
may also adversely affect the Debentures.
If any of the following risks actually occur, the enjoyment
of the Debentures and the financial condition of the
Company could be materially and adversely affected. In
that case, you may lose all or part of your investment.

2. Risk factors relating to the
Debentures and the Company
each Debenture is an unsecured obligation
of the Company
Each Debenture is an unsecured debt of the Company
and will rank pari passu with all future unsecured debts of
the Company. If the Company were to become insolvent,
there is a risk that some or all of the nominal value of the
Debentures will not be redeemed.
The Company’s current assets are primarily cash, shortterm deposits and receivables.
The counterparty credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparty is HSBC Bank plc which has a high credit
rating assigned by international credit rating agencies.
The Company’s credit risk is attributable to receivables
with substantially all of its short-term receivables being
due from the Club which stages The Championships at
the Grounds. In view of this concentration of risk, the
Directors are kept informed of any material changes in
the financial strength of The Championships which have
been highly profitable for many years. Substantially all of
the Company’s long-term receivables are due from the
LTA. These are due to be repaid to the Company on 1
August 2013.

Historically, the Company has been able to fund
improvement and refurbishment of the Grounds from cash
inflows generated through its facility fee and the issue of
debentures. However, as a result of significant expenditure
on recent development activity, notably the Centre Court
roof, the Company has required external funding in the
form of a long-term £75 million secured loan facility with
HSBC which was entered into on 31 August 2007.
The HSBC Loan Facility is due to be repaid according
to an agreed repayment schedule using receipts from
the annual facility fee and future issues of debentures,
and the first such repayment of £10 million was made as
scheduled on 31 July 2010. The Directors are confident
that The Championships will continue to pay the facility
fee but are conscious that adverse economic conditions
could lead to a shortfall in receipts from future debenture
issues including this Debenture Issue.
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk since the
interest payable on the HSBC Loan Facility floats in line
with LIBOR. The Directors have explored the possibility
of using interest rate swap contracts to manage this risk
but in view of current low interest rates have been content
to allow the interest rate to float. In the event that LIBOR
rates rise materially over the term of the HSBC Loan
Facility and the Company does not address this through
adequate hedging, the liquidity available to the Company
and its financial position may be affected. This could in turn
impact the Company's ability to redeem the Debentures.
The Debentures will not generate any
interest or income
Debenture Holders will not be entitled to receive any
interest or income from the Debentures. The only rights
associated with the Debentures are the Championships
Privileges, including the entrance to The Championships
from 2012 to 2016 as well as the repayment of the
nominal value at par in 2016.
The ability of Debenture Holders to sell the
Debentures may be limited
It is emphasised that no application has been made for
the Debentures to be admitted to listing or trading on
any market. Investment in an unquoted debenture of
this nature, being an illiquid investment, is speculative,
involving a degree of risk. It may be difficult to sell or
realise Debentures or to obtain reliable information about
their value or the extent of the risks to which they are
exposed. Any Debenture Holder wishing to realise their
Debenture(s) should ask their stockbroker to contact
Evolution Securities (of 100 Wood Street, London EC2V
7AN), which has indicated to the Directors that, following
the Debenture Issue, it will maintain a list of parties who
have expressed a wish to acquire Debentures and will,
on a best efforts basis, endeavour to match buyers with
sellers via their stockbrokers, and, subject to market
pricing conventions, process the transactions and advise
the Company of any transfers. The Company shall have
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no liability to any person for any loss or alleged loss
arising from the price, the timing or the manner of such
sale or otherwise in connection therewith. Information
concerning the prices at which representative transactions
of Debentures have been notified to the Company during
the prior month shall be advertised in the Financial Times
on the first Saturday of each calendar month.
The ability to sell tickets allocated to
Debenture Holders at acceptable prices may
be limited
Tickets allocated to Debenture Holders are freely
transferable, and can be sold on the open market, although
it cannot be guaranteed that Debenture Holders will be
able to find a buyer for their tickets at acceptable prices.
In addition, the Club has, for a number of years, offered
to buy back tickets from debenture holders on a matched
bargain basis, that is, if the Club has demand from
purchasers in respect of the tickets to be sold. However,
there is no guarantee that the Club will continue to offer to
buy back tickets from Debenture Holders in the future.
The value of the Debentures may increase
or decrease
If you sell your Debenture you may receive less than you
paid for it. A Debenture is a wasting asset.
The premium and VAT elements are not
repayable
At the end of The Championships in 2016, the only
rights attached to the Debentures will be the right to be
redeemed and repaid at par, namely £500. The premium
and VAT will not be repayable to the Debenture Holder.
The Debentures will be forfeited if the
instalment payments are not met
If the second instalment remains unpaid after it has
become due and payable, the Directors will give the
Debenture Holder not less than 14 clear days’ notice
requiring payment of the amount unpaid. If this notice is
not complied with, the Debenture may be forfeited by a
resolution of the Directors. No reimbursement of the first
instalment will be made in these circumstances.
The Directors reserve the right to refuse to
register a transfer
Although the Debentures are freely transferable, the
Directors reserve the right, in their absolute discretion,
to refuse to register a transfer without giving reasons for
such refusal.
The Debentures carry no right to renewal
or priority on any future debenture issues
The Debentures will expire in August 2016 and carry
no rights to renewal or priority in any future No.1 Court
debenture issues. In the past, former debenture holders
have generally been given priority in a subsequent
debenture issue, but there is no guarantee that this
practice will continue. However, it is currently the

intention of the Company that, generally, holders of the
current No.1 Court debentures of the 2007-2011 series
will have priority in the allocation of the new Debentures
equivalent to their existing holding.
VAT changes may increase or reduce the
price of the Debentures
The premium of £11,000 payable in respect of each
Debenture will incur VAT of £2,200 per Debenture
(currently at the rate of 20.0 per cent). The VAT will,
therefore, be affected by any change(s) in the rate of
VAT and the Company reserves the right to adjust
appropriately, on any such change(s), the total amount
and instalments payable.

3. Risk factors relating to The
Championships
Play at The Championships is generally
subject to the weather
Play on any day of The Championships can be suspended
in whole or in part in the event of bad weather. Currently, if
there is less than one hour’s play because of bad weather
on No.1 Court, a refund will be paid to debenture holders
of the published public ticket price for that day, which
for the 2011 Championships, will range from £38 to £74
depending on the day in question. If there is one hour’s
play or more, but less than two hours’ play, refunds will
be limited to half the published ticket price for that day.
The referee’s decision on how much play has taken place
will be final.
Scheduling is at the Club’s discretion
Tickets allocated to Debenture Holders are for No.1 Court
on the date shown and entitle the Debenture Holder to a
seat in No.1 Court rather than to view a particular match,
round of matches or player. The Club reserves the right
to change the programme of play without notice and at
its absolute discretion. Matches may also be moved from
one court to another.
The Championships may not continue to
attract top-ranked tennis players
The participation at The Championships of the top-ranked
tennis players in the world depends on a number of
factors and cannot be guaranteed. Participation at The
Championships is subject to injury, the personal choice of
the players concerned and possible player actions.
The Championships could be disrupted by
other external factors
The Championships could be disrupted by a number of
different external factors. These could include, inter alia,
security alerts (either at the Grounds or elsewhere) and the
imposition of international travel restrictions (for example for
health reasons). In the event of such disruptions, entrance
to The Championships may be impacted or cancelled and
the participation of competitors may be affected.
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Part 3 – Information on the Debenture issue

1. Introduction
The Company owns the tennis courts, grounds and
buildings, in Wimbledon, London SW19, known as The
All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club, at which The
Championships are held. The shares of the Company are
currently owned in equal proportions by the Club and
the LTA.
On 14 May 2009, the Club and the LTA entered into an
agreement for the sale by the LTA of its shares in the
Company to the Club and/or the Company and for the
Club to become the sole shareholder. This agreement is
due to complete on 1 August 2013, conditional upon the
holding of The Championships in 2013.
The Company derives substantially all of its income from
a facility fee payable by The Championships for the use
of the Grounds. The Company implements the Long
Term Plan. The Company has historically retained all of
its profits for this purpose and has not paid dividends to
its shareholders.

2. Long Term Plan
Introduction and background
Debentures were first introduced in 1920 to fund the
purchase of part of the Company’s present grounds and
the building of Centre Court. Since then, the proceeds
from subsequent debenture issues have provided funding
for many significant improvements to the facilities at the
Grounds. In March 1993, the Company announced details
of the Long Term Plan, the aim of which is to improve
the quality of The Championships for all those involved,
and to ensure the continuation of The Championships as
arguably the premier tennis tournament in the world.

redeveloped many of the facilities within Centre Court
including new restaurants, bars and other facilities for
Centre Court debenture holders and the public.
In addition, there has been considerable redevelopment
of those parts of the Grounds to the south of Centre
Court, including the construction of a new Court 2, which
was used for the first time at the 2009 Championships,
and the construction of a new Court 3, which is scheduled
to be used for the first time at the 2011 Championships.
The Company is currently constructing terraces over
the south-west and south-east staircases of No.1 Court
which will accommodate a new restaurant and bar for
No.1 Court debenture holders on the same level as the
existing No.1 Court Debenture Holders’ Lounge. These
new terraces will significantly increase the quantity of
space available to No.1 Court debenture holders and
will, for the first time, provide outdoor space for eating,
drinking and relaxation.
Future development activity
The Company has planning consent to extend the
Millennium Building to provide significantly increased
space for the competitors which is designed to enhance
their experience of The Championships.
From 1 August 2010 to 28 February 2011 (the latest
practicable date prior to publication of this Prospectus),
the Company has incurred £6.7 million in relation to
various projects. As at 28 February 2011, the latest
practicable date prior to publication of this Prospectus, the
Company had committed to incur further costs totalling
approximately £8.5 million in relation to various projects,
including the new Court 3 and ancillary buildings and the
extension to the Millennium Building. It is anticipated that
some of the funding of these commitments will be met
through the receipts of the Debenture Issue.

Stage 1 was completed in 1997 and involved the
development of the new No.1 Court stadium in Aorangi
Park, the building of two additional courts, an underground
link across the Grounds and a new Broadcast Centre.

3. Background to and reasons for the
Issue and use of proceeds

Stage 2 was completed in 2000 and involved the removal
of the old No.1 Court to allow the Centre Court to be
expanded westwards providing additional seating, and
the development of the Millennium Building for the use
of players, the media, officials, members of the Club and
the LTA Council.

The Company issues debentures for Centre Court
and No.1 Court, currently every five years, to fund the
continuing development of the facilities at the Grounds
for the benefit of all participants including spectators,
players, the media and debenture holders. The Board has
authorised the Debenture Issue on 21 March 2011.

In 2002, the Clubhouse and Royal Box area of the Centre
Court building were substantially redeveloped. The new
Museum Building at Gate 3, which also houses the Club’s
offices, opened in 2006.

The Company has recently completed a series of major
improvements to Centre Court including the new roof
and other, smaller projects, such as the development of
a new Court 2. In addition, a new Court 3 is scheduled to
come into operation at the 2011 Championships.

Recent development activity
Since 2006, the Company has completed the construction
of the new retractable roof over Centre Court and has
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These improvements have been funded in part by the
most recent Centre Court debenture issue which took
place in 2009, and which raised £59.4 million net of VAT
and expenses, and the previous No.1 Court debenture
issue which took place in 2006, and which raised £8.7
million net of VAT and expenses. The Company has
funded the remainder of its expenditure through the
HSBC Loan Facility and its own operating cash flow.
In order to contribute to the funding and continued
implementation of the Long Term Plan in its current form,
and to the funding of future development activity, the
Company has decided to offer up to 1,000 Debentures
to raise approximately £11.2 million, net of VAT of £2.2
million and estimated expenses of £0.3 million.
The proceeds of the Debenture Issue will be used primarily
to repay amounts borrowed to date under the HSBC
Loan Facility. Proceeds may also be used to fund current
and future development activity including new facilities
for No.1 Court debenture holders, the extension of the
Millennium Building and the new Court 3 and ancillary
buildings. There are a number of further projects which
are currently being considered by the Company, and
should the Company decide to pursue these, proceeds
from the Issue may go towards their development.
Pursuant to an agreement dated 14 May 2009 with the LTA,
the Club has agreed to purchase the LTA’s shares in the
Company. Under this agreement, the Club has the option
to alternatively procure the buy-back by the Company
of some or all of those shares. The Club is considering
whether to exercise this option and should it choose to
do so, some of the proceeds of the Debenture Issue may
be used for this purpose. Any such repurchase of shares
will be subject to the Company’s available resources and
funding requirements.
The existing series of No.1 Court debentures will be
redeemed on 1 August 2011, at a total cost of £425,000.

4. Principal terms of the Debentures
and the Issue
The Debenture Issue will consist of up to 1,000 Debentures
of a nominal value of £500 each issued at a premium
of £11,000 plus (subject as provided below) VAT of
£2,200, being a total cost of £13,700 per Debenture. The
total price will be payable in two instalments, the first
instalment of £3,800 upon application on or before 10
June 2011 and the second instalment of £9,900 on or
before 31 January 2012.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Debentures,
each Debenture will confer on its registered holder the
right of entrance for one person, free of charge, to the
Grounds and the right, free of charge, to one reserved

seat in the No.1 Court stand for each of the first ten
days on which play is scheduled to take place at The
Championships in 2012 and in every year thereafter up to
and including 2016. Under the usual schedule of matches
for The Championships, the last main draw singles
matches played on No.1 Court are the men’s singles
quarter finals on the ninth day of The Championships.
Doubles matches are usually scheduled to be played on
No.1 Court on the tenth day of The Championships.
Tickets allocated to No.1 Court debenture holders are
the only No.1 Court Championships tickets that are freely
transferable and can be sold on the open market.
The location of a Debenture Holder’s seat within the area
reserved for Debenture Holders will be determined each
year by ballot. Holders of Debentures will be given the
opportunity to express a preference as to their seating
sections within the area to be occupied by No.1 Court
Debenture Holders. A plan of No.1 Court showing the
position of the Debenture seats is set out within the
introductory section of this document.
The dates of The Championships and order of play
are determined at the discretion of the Committee of
Management of The Championships. Tickets will be
sent to, or made available for collection by, Debenture
Holders each year approximately four weeks before the
commencement of the relevant Championships. The
conditions of issue of tickets are set out in Part 4 of this
Prospectus.
Each Debenture will carry, on each of the first ten days
during the 2012 to 2016 Championships, the right
(subject to compliance with the relevant dress code) of
entrance for one person to the private Debenture Holders’
facilities, including the No.1 Court Debenture Holders’
Lounge, The Renshaw (subject to advance reservation
and availability) and also new facilities, which will include
The Veranda and The No.1 Bar which are currently under
construction and are expected to be completed prior to
the 2011 Championships. The Company reserves the right
to reconfigure the No.1 Court debenture facilities from
year to year in order to refine the offering to debenture
holders. No.1 Court Debenture Holders will continue to
have exclusive use of the areas currently reserved for
them within No.1 Court. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Debentures do not confer any rights of entrance to the
2012 Olympics tennis tournament or any other event held
at the Grounds apart from The Championships.
Each Debenture will also carry the right, upon application
in advance, and subject to payment of a parking fee, to
a parking space in a car park made available for use by
debenture holders during The Championships.
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The Debentures will not carry interest, will be redeemable
at par (£500 per Debenture) on 1 August 2016 and will
be unsecured. The Debentures will be registered and
in certificated form and will be transferable using a
stock transfer form (and in the manner specified in the
Conditions), but the Company will have the right to
refuse to register a transfer without giving its reasons for
the refusal. Subject as provided below, the Debentures
will be issued partly paid, with a payment on application
of £3,800 on or before 3.00 pm on 10 June 2011, or such
later date as the Company may decide and a second
instalment of £9,900 on or before 31 January 2012.
Failure on the part of any Debenture Holder to pay the
second instalment on or before the date demanded could
result in forfeiture of the Debenture in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Debenture.
The premium of £11,000 incurs VAT of £2,200 per
Debenture (currently at the rate of 20.0 per cent). Such
VAT will, therefore, be affected by any change(s) in the
rate of VAT and the Company reserves the right to adjust
appropriately, on any such change(s), the total amount
and instalments payable.
The terms and conditions of the Debentures are set out
in full in Part 5 of this Prospectus.

5. How to apply
Applications are invited for Debentures at £13,700 each
(£500 nominal value, £11,000 premium and £2,200 VAT
on the premium) payable as follows:
Amount payable per debenture
Instalment

First
Second

Date payable

10 June 2011
31 January 2012

Nominal
Net
Value Premium
(£)
(£) VAT* (£) Total (£)

500
–
500

2,750
8,250
11,000

550
1,650
2,200

3,800
9,900
13,700

*VAT has been calculated at the rate currently due to be in force at the
time that the relevant instalment is payable.

Interest will not be paid on application monies received
by the Company.
Applications for the Debentures should be made on the
accompanying Application Form. The Company will
accept only the official Application Form duly completed
and in no circumstances will photocopies be accepted.
For the avoidance of doubt, all applications are sent at the
risk of the applicant. Application Forms, duly completed
together with a cheque or banker’s draft for the first
instalment of £3,800 per Debenture, must be received by
the Company no later than 3.00 pm on 10 June 2011 or
such later date as the Company may decide. In the event
that the closure of the application lists is postponed, the
Company will make a public announcement to that effect
on its website, stating the new closing time.

It is currently the intention of the Company that, generally,
holders of the current No.1 Court debentures of the
2007-2011 series will have priority in the allocation of
the new Debentures equivalent to their existing holding.
The Company reserves the right to allocate Debentures
at its sole discretion and no person will be entitled, as of
right, to priority allocation of any Debentures.
Holders of the current No.1 Court debentures of the 20072011 series should complete the personalised Existing
Debenture Holders’ Application Form provided to them.
Applications must be accompanied by a cheque or a
banker’s draft, made payable to “AELTG plc” and crossed
“A/C Payee Only” for the first instalment (£3,800 per
Debenture). The cheque or banker’s draft must be drawn
in Sterling on a UK clearing bank or building society and
must bear the appropriate sort code. A pre-paid and
addressed envelope is enclosed for your convenience.
Applications should be forwarded to, or delivered at, the
Debenture Office, The All England Lawn Tennis Ground
plc, Church Road, Wimbledon, London SW19 5AE. The
Company will not accept responsibility for any delay
which may be caused by an Application Form which
is completed incorrectly or is illegible or for any delay
outside its control.
Cheques and banker’s drafts received in connection with
the Debenture Issue will not be presented for payment
before 10 June 2011. Cheques and banker’s drafts relating
to wholly unsuccessful applications will not be presented
for payment and will be returned.
It is a term of the Debenture Issue that, to ensure
compliance with the Money Laundering Regulations,
the Company is required to obtain information from an
independent source to identify and verify the identity of
any person lodging an Application Form. Further details
are set out in paragraph 10 of Part 9 of this Prospectus.
Where verification is requested pursuant to the Money
Laundering Regulations and verification is not provided,
monies to be returned will be sent by cheque or banker’s
draft in favour of the drawee to the office of the bank or
building society shown on the remittance.
In order to reduce the likelihood of delays or of applications
being terminated, applicants for Debentures should
ideally make payment by means of a cheque drawn on
the applicant’s account. If this is not practicable and an
applicant uses a cheque drawn by a third party or a building
society cheque or banker’s draft, the applicant should:
- write the name and address and, in the case of
individuals, date of birth of the applicant on the back of
the cheque, building society cheque or banker’s draft;

the championships
18

- if payment is made by building society cheque (not
being a cheque drawn on an account of the applicant)
or banker’s draft, ask the building society or bank to
endorse on the cheque or banker’s draft the name and
account number of the person whose building society or
bank account is being debited and add its stamp; and
- if delivering an Application Form by hand, ensure that
they have with them evidence of identity bearing their
photograph (e.g. a passport).
Each applicant, in making an application, shall be
deemed to acknowledge that neither the applicant, nor
any person on whose behalf the applicant is applying, is
relying on any information or representation in relation
to the Company or the Debenture Issue other than such
as is contained in this Prospectus and accordingly that
no party responsible, whether individually or jointly, for
the preparation of this Prospectus, or any individual part
thereof, shall have the liability for any information or
representation except as contained in the Prospectus.
Potential applicants for Debentures include UK individuals
and corporate bodies.
Further terms and conditions of application are set out
in Part 6 of this Prospectus.

6. Allotment
Results of the allotment will be made available to the
public by way of a Company announcement by 24 June
2011 (or such later date that the Board may decide in the
event that the closing date for applications is deferred).
Letters of confirmation or, where appropriate, application
monies (without interest) in respect of unsuccessful
applications received on or before 10 June 2011 will be
despatched by the Company to applicants on or before
24 June 2011 at the risk of the applicant.
If applications are not received and accepted for
all the Debentures, the Company reserves the right
subsequently to issue, from time to time, any un-issued
Debentures. Any such future issue or issues may be made
on such terms as to the amount of the premium and the
payment of instalments of the premium as the Company
may, in its absolute discretion, determine.

7. Taxation
These statements are intended as a general guide to
current United Kingdom law and practice. Any person
who is in any doubt about his or her personal tax position
should consult his or her professional adviser. Debenture
Holders liable to taxation in jurisdictions other than the
United Kingdom should discuss their personal taxation
positions with their own professional advisers.

Any disposal by way of sale, transfer or gift of a
Debenture by an individual Debenture Holder resident
in the United Kingdom for tax purposes should, under
current legislation, be exempt from capital gains tax
as the Debentures should fall within the definition of a
qualifying corporate bond. Accordingly, any loss arising
on the disposal of a Debenture by an individual Debenture
Holder will not give rise to an allowable loss for capital
gains tax purposes.
The comments above refer to the disposal of Debentures
but do not refer to the sale of tickets or any other disposal
of Championships Privileges.
The subscription for or transfer of a Debenture will not
give rise to a liability to either stamp duty or stamp duty
reserve tax.

8. Sale of Debenture tickets
Tickets allocated to No.1 Court debenture holders are
the only No.1 Court Championships tickets that are
freely transferable and can be sold on the open market.
In addition, the Club has, for a number of years, offered
to buy back tickets from debenture holders on a matched
bargain basis, that is, if the Club has demand from
purchasers in respect of the tickets to be sold. However,
there is no guarantee that the Club will continue to offer to
buy back tickets from Debenture Holders in the future.

9. Realisation of Debentures
The Company recognises that some Debenture Holders
may wish to realise their Debenture(s) at some point in
the future. Any Debenture Holder wishing to realise their
Debenture(s) should ask their stockbroker to contact
Evolution Securities (of 100 Wood Street, London EC2V
7AN), which has indicated to the Company that, following
the Debenture Issue, it will maintain a list of parties who
have expressed a wish to acquire Debenture(s) and will,
on a best efforts basis, endeavour to match buyers with
sellers via their stockbrokers and, subject to market
pricing conventions, process the transactions and advise
the Company of any transfers. The Company shall have no
liability to any person for any loss or alleged loss arising
from the price, the timing or the manner of such sale or
otherwise in connection therewith. Debentures may not be
transferred before notification of the allotment is made.
Information concerning the prices at which representative
transactions in the Debentures have been notified to
the Company during the prior month will be advertised
in the Financial Times on the first Saturday of each
calendar month.
The Company may redeem the Debentures at any
time in whole or in part pursuant to Condition 6 of the
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Debentures as set out in Part 5 of this Prospectus. The
latest date for redemption will be 1 August 2016, but the
Company reserves the right at any time or times before
that date to redeem all of the Debentures, or any of them,
selected by ballot, at par. The holder of each Debenture
so redeemed at any time before The Championships to
be held in 2016 will receive a certificate which will entitle
the holder to the continuation of The Championships
Privileges for all Championships to be held after the date
of redemption up to and including The Championships
to be held in 2016.
It is emphasised that no application has been made for
the Debentures to be admitted to listing or trading on
any market. Investment in an unquoted debenture of
this nature, being an illiquid investment, is speculative,
involving a degree of risk. It may be difficult to sell or
realise the Debentures or to obtain reliable information
about its value or the extent of the risks to which they
are exposed. Each Debenture is an unsecured debt of the
Company and its value may increase or decrease. They
do not carry the right to any income and are a wasting
asset. If you sell a Debenture, you may receive less than
you paid for it. The Debentures may not be a suitable
investment for all recipients of this Prospectus.

10. Priority for the next Centre Court
Debenture Issue
It is the Company’s intention that holders of this series
of No.1 Court Debentures who apply for the next series
of Centre Court debentures (covering the period 2016–
2020) will, generally, receive a more favourable allocation
than applicants from the general public. This was the case
in the most recent Centre Court debenture issue for the
2011-2015 series, where the success rate for applicants
holding No.1 Court debentures was greater than that for
applications from the general public. It should be noted
that whilst it is the Company’s intention to prioritise
applications from No.1 Court Debenture Holders for
the next Centre Court issue, the likelihood of success
will depend upon the level of applications for that issue,
both from No.1 Court Debenture Holders and generally,
including the level of applications to renew from existing
Centre Court debenture holders which may limit the
number of debentures available to others.

11. Overseas applicants
The attention of applicants who are citizens of countries
other than the United Kingdom is drawn to the
information which appears in paragraph 11 of Part 9 of
this Prospectus.

12. Further information
Your attention is drawn to the further information set out
in Parts 2 and 4 to 9 inclusive of this Prospectus.
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Part 4 – Conditions of issue of
tickets and entry to the grounds

Set out below are the current principal terms and
conditions upon which tickets in the No.1 Court stand
are likely to be issued by the Club to Debenture Holders
(the Club reserves the right to change these conditions
from time to time):
1.	Play on any day of The Championships can be
suspended in whole or in part in the event of bad weather.
Currently, if there is less than one hour’s play because
of bad weather on No.1 Court, a refund will be paid to
Debenture Holders of the published public ticket price for
that day, which for the 2011 Championships, will range
from £38 to £74 depending on the day in question. If
there is one hour’s play or more, but less than two hours’
play, refunds will be limited to half the published ticket
price for that day. The referee’s decision on how much
play has taken place will be final.
2.	The Club reserves the right to change the programme
of play without notice where it is reasonably necessary
to do so. Tickets are for No.1 Court on the date shown
and entitle the Debenture Holders to a seat in No.1 Court
and not to view a particular match, round of matches or
player. Matches may be moved from one court to another
at the sole discretion of the Committee of Management
of The Championships.
3. Babes in arms will be allowed into the Grounds free
of charge but will not be allowed in No.1 Court. Children
under the age of 12 must be accompanied by an adult.
4. Tickets allocated to No.1 Court debenture holders are
the only No.1 Court Championships tickets that are freely
transferable and can be sold on the open market.
5.	In the event of any curtailment or cancellation of play
due to any cause (other than negligence of the Club)
other than bad weather, it is regretted that no refund of
money can be made.

6.	Tickets are issued subject to Conditions of Entry
established by the Club from time to time and the Club
shall be entitled to refuse admission to any ticket holder in
reasonable circumstances and shall give written reasons
if requested. A copy of the full Conditions of Entry
currently in force is available on the official website of
The Championships and is also available on application.
The full Conditions of Entry currently in force are as
detailed below:
Security
The Club reserves the right to limit items which may be
brought into the Grounds and to search bags, vehicles
and the person before granting entry to the Grounds and
other specific facilities.
Prohibited Items
The following items are prohibited from the Grounds:
– any bag exceeding 16” x 12” x 12” (approximately 40cm
x 30cm x 30cm);
- hard sided items of any size;
- any item which may be interpreted as a potential
weapon, including sharp or pointed objects (e.g. knives
or large corkscrews) and ‘personal protection’ sprays;
- large flags (over 2’ x 2’), banners, rattles, klaxons or
oversized hats; and
- any objects or clothing bearing political statements
or commercial identification intended for ‘ambush
marketing’.
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Visitors in possession of prohibited items may be refused
entry to or ejected from the Grounds. Prohibited items
may be left in the left luggage facilities outside the
Grounds or handed to Club security staff for disposal.

Mobile Telephones, Communication Devices
and Radios
The use of mobile telephones, communication devices,
audio-visual equipment and radios must not inconvenience
any other person in the Grounds; in particular they must
be switched off in and around the courts during play.
Personal headphones must be used when listening to
radios inside the Grounds.

Alcohol
Alcohol may be brought into the Grounds, but is limited
to the equivalent of one bottle of wine or two 500ml
cans of beer per person. The consumption of alcohol
is permitted only in public bars and other authorised
areas. Glass drinking vessels may not be used on the
Show Courts and all drinks taken onto the Show Courts
must be covered to avoid spillage. Hot and/or strong
smelling food may not be taken onto the Show Courts.
The Club reserves the right to refuse entry to the stands
of any court to anyone carrying alcohol and to ask anyone
drinking alcohol in the stands to leave.

Filming and Broadcasting at The
Championships
During the Wimbledon Fortnight, various filming and
broadcasting takes place. By your presence at The
Championships, you grant your permission for your
likeness and voice to be included in pictures and/or
on film and their exploitation and advertising without
compensation or credit.

Behaviour
The use of any annoying or dangerous behaviour, foul
or abusive language or obscene gestures, the removal
of shirts or any clothing likely to cause offence and the
climbing onto any building, wall or other structure/
equipment, and the use of wheeled footwear is forbidden
and may result in ejection from the Grounds.

Removal from the Grounds
The Club reserves the right for its servants, agents and
police officers to remove from the Grounds any person
who contravenes the above ‘Conditions of Entry’ and any
person whose presence and/or behaviour in the Grounds
could reasonably be construed as dangerous, a nuisance
or annoyance to any other person in the Grounds.

Courts
Unauthorised persons are not permitted on the courts
at any time.
Photography and Filming
The use of photographic equipment must not
inconvenience any other person in the Grounds. Still
photographs, film, videotape or other audio-visual
material recorded within the Grounds may not be sold
or used commercially in any way whatsoever unless
authorised by the Club and may be confiscated by the
Club if such sale or commercial use is suspected.
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Part 5 – terms and conditions of the debentures

Set out below are the terms and conditions of the
Debentures which have been approved by the Board
(the “Conditions”):

1. Interpretation
1.1	In these Conditions, references to the singular or
the plural numbers include each other and references to
the masculine, feminine or neuter genders include the
others.
1.2	The headings in these Conditions are for ease of
reference only and not intended to affect the construction
of any provision.
1.3	The following words and expressions have the
following meanings:

2.2 Each Debenture Certificate will be individually
numbered.
2.3 Each Debenture is an unsecured obligation of the
Company.
2.4	The Debentures shall not carry any rights to interest
or income.
2.5 Any Debenture of the 2012-2016 No.1 Court Series
subsequently issued may be issued at a different premium,
and with different dates for payment of the instalments of
the premium and the Principal Money, but shall otherwise
be issued upon the same terms as this Debenture.

3. Forfeiture

“Company” The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc

3.1 If an instalment remains unpaid after it has become
due and payable, the Directors shall give to the
Debenture Holder not less than 14 clear days’ notice
requiring payment of the amount unpaid including any
VAT thereon. The notice shall name the place where
payment is to be made and shall state that, if the notice
is not complied with, the Debenture will be liable to be
forfeited.

“Debenture Holder” the registered holder for the time
being of a Debenture of the 2012-2016 No.1 Court
Series including his successors in title and personal
representatives

3.2	If this notice is not complied with, the Debenture
may be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors,
notwithstanding that payment may have been made
subsequent to the date specified.

“Directors” the directors of the Company

3.3 Subject to these Conditions, a forfeited Debenture
may be sold, re-issued or otherwise disposed of on
such terms and in such manner as the Directors shall
determine, either to the person who was before the
forfeiture the Debenture Holder or to any other person.
At any time before sale, re-issue or other disposition,
the forfeiture may be cancelled on such terms as the
Directors think fit. Where, for the purposes of its disposal,
a forfeited Debenture is to be transferred to any person,
the Directors may authorise some person to execute an
instrument of transfer of the Debenture to that person.

“The Championships” the annual Wimbledon Lawn
Tennis Championships
“Championships Privileges” the rights given to Debenture
Holders pursuant to Condition 4.1

“Grounds” the Company’s grounds in Wimbledon,
SW19 5AE
“Principal Money” the nominal value of £500 per
Debenture
“Record Date” the first day of May in the years 2012-2016
“Statutes” every statute (including any statutory
instrument, order, regulation or subordinate legislation
made under it) concerning companies that are
incorporated in England and Wales to the extent that
it is for the time being in force or (wherever the context
requires) was in force at a particular time, including the
Companies Act 1985 and the Companies Act 2006.
“US Securities Act” the US Securities Act of 1933,
as amended

2. Debenture
2.1 This is one of a series of up to 1,000 Debentures of a
nominal value of £500 each which the Company is issuing
and which is called the “2012-2016 No.1 Court Series”.

3.4	A person whose Debenture has been forfeited shall
cease to be the Debenture Holder in respect of it and shall
surrender the Debenture Certificate to the Company for
cancellation and shall not be entitled to be repaid any
amounts previously paid.
3.5	A statutory declaration by a Director or the Secretary
that a Debenture has been forfeited on a specified date
shall be conclusive evidence of the facts stated in it as
against all persons claiming to be entitled to the Debenture
and the declaration shall (subject to the execution of an
instrument of transfer if necessary) constitute a good
title to the Debenture and the person to whom the
Debenture is disposed of shall not be bound to see the
application of the consideration, if any, nor shall his title
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to the Debenture be affected by any irregularity of the
proceedings in reference to the forfeiture or disposal of
the Debenture.

4. The Championships Privileges
4.1 In each year from 2012 to 2016 inclusive during which
The Championships are held, the Debenture Holder
on the Record Date, shall be entitled, subject to these
conditions, to:
- the right to be allotted free of charge one seat in
the No.1 Court stand (including free entrance to the
Grounds) from which to view the play on each of the
first ten days on which play is scheduled to take place;
- subject to availability, the right for the bearer of each
such ticket to use, while the Grounds are open on the day
for which the ticket is issued, private Debenture Holders’
facilities reserved for Debenture Holders (subject to
compliance with the relevant dress code) and to be
served (on payment) with meals and drinks; and
- the right, upon application in advance, and subject to
payment of a parking fee, to one parking space in a
car park made available for use by Debenture Holders
during The Championships.
4.2 The number and location of the seat and parking
space to be allotted to each Debenture Holder, the
procedure for applying for parking spaces, and the
amounts to be paid for meals, drinks and parking shall
be at the discretion of the Company. In addition, the
Company may in its absolute discretion make regulations
as to how the Championships Privileges may be exercised
and may vary those regulations, provided that no such
variation shall limit the Championships Privileges as
stated in Condition 4.1.
4.3	The Debenture Holder on the Record Date shall be
entitled to the benefit of the Championships Privileges
in that year. The Company shall have no liability to the
transferee of the Debenture, or to any person to whom
any such transferee transfers any Championships
Privileges, in respect of such Championships Privileges
if such transfer has not been notified to the Company
prior to the Record Date.
4.4 	A former Debenture Holder whose Debenture has
been forfeited shall not be entitled to the Championships
Privileges.
4.5	If a Debenture has been redeemed before 1 August
2016 then, subject to Condition 6.7, the Debenture Holder
at the date of redemption shall continue to be entitled
to the Championships Privileges, and, upon such early
redemption, the Company shall issue to him a certificate

of entitlement to the Championships Privileges upon
the terms of these Conditions, so far as they are still
relevant. Any such certificate shall be transferable to
the same extent as this Debenture, and the Company
shall recognise and register such transfers in accordance
with and subject to the appropriate provisions of
these Conditions with the certificate of entitlement to
the Championships Privileges being substituted for a
Debenture Certificate.
4.6 	If the Debenture is registered in joint names, only the
person whose name is entered first on the register shall
be entitled to the Championships Privileges, although he
may allow any of the persons registered jointly with him
to take the benefit of them in his place.
4.7 	Issues of further series of debentures entitling holders
to tickets for the No.1 Court will be at the discretion of the
Company and Debenture Holders will not be entitled, as
of right, to priority allocation of such debentures.
4.8 	In these Conditions, “force majeure” shall mean any
cause preventing the Company from performing any or
all of its obligations which arises from or is attributable to
acts, events, omissions or accidents beyond the reasonable
control of the Company including strikes, lock outs or other
industrial disputes (whether involving the workforce of the
Company or of any other party), act of God, war, terrorism,
riot, civil commotion, malicious damage, compliance
with any law or governmental order, rule, regulation or
direction, accident, breakdown of plant or machinery,
fire, flood, storm, drought and environmental harm,
default of suppliers or subcontractors, acts or omissions
of governmental or non-governmental authority, acts
or omissions of the ITF (or any successor body), or acts
or omissions of any member country of the ITF (or any
successor body) from time to time.
4.9	If the Company is prevented or delayed in the
performance of any of its obligations under these
Conditions by force majeure, it shall have no liability in
respect of the performance of such of its obligations as
are prevented by the force majeure events during the
continuation of such events, and for such time after they
cease as the Company in its absolute discretion shall
consider necessary.

5. Registration and transfer
5.1 The Company shall maintain a register of Debenture
Holders, in which shall be entered the names and
addresses of the Debenture Holders and particulars of the
Debentures held by them, and payments received from
them by the Company and made to them by the Company
upon redemption. The register shall be open to inspection
at all reasonable times during normal business hours by
the Debenture Holder or by any person authorised in
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writing by him at the Debenture Office, The All England
Lawn Tennis Ground plc, Church Road, Wimbledon,
London, SW19 5AE, or such other place as shall from time
to time be the Debenture Office of the Company.
5.2	The Company shall recognise and treat the Debenture
Holder as exclusively entitled to the benefit of the
Debenture. The Company shall not be bound to enter in
the register any notice of or in any way to recognise any
trust, whether express, implied or constructive, to which
the Debenture may be subject, or the right of any person
other than the Debenture Holder to any benefit under
this Debenture, except as expressly provided in these
Conditions, and the receipt of the Debenture Holder shall
be a good discharge to the Company for any payment to
be made upon redemption.

6. Redemption
6.1	Subject to this condition 6.1, the Debentures will be
redeemed and repaid at par on 1 August 2016. Subject
to Condition 4.5, the Company may redeem all or any
of the Debentures of the 2012-2016 No.1 Court Series
at any time or times before 1 August 2016 by giving not
less than one month’s notice in writing to the Debenture
Holders of the Debentures to be redeemed, and, on the
expiration of the notice, the Principal Money in respect
of those Debentures shall become payable to such
Debenture Holders in full.
6.2	If the Company proposes to make a redemption of
some (but not all) of the Debentures outstanding before
1 August 2016 the following procedure shall be adopted:

5.3	The Debenture may be transferred subject to the
following restrictions:

- the Company shall, in its absolute discretion, determine
the number of Debentures to be redeemed;

- every transfer must be in writing on a stock transfer
form under the hand of both the Debenture Holder
and the transferee until such time as the second and
final instalment due under the Debenture has been
paid; thereafter, transfers may be executed by the
Debenture Holder alone. A transfer must be delivered
to the Company’s Debenture Office together with the
Debenture Certificate or an indemnity in respect thereof
pursuant to condition 5.4 and such other evidence
of identity or title as the Company may reasonably
require;

- on the day before notice of redemption is to be sent
out, the Company shall make a draw at its Debenture
Office, in the presence of at least one of its Directors
and the Secretary, in order to determine the particular
Debentures to be redeemed;

- the Directors of the Company may, in their absolute
discretion and without giving any reason therefor,
decline to register any transfer of any Debenture,
whether or not any instalment has yet been paid; and
- no transfer will be registered in favour of more than
four joint transferees; and no transfer will be registered
during The Championships in any year.
5.4 If a Debenture Certificate has been lost or destroyed,
the Company may accept in its place an appropriate
indemnity, which shall be in such form as the Company
may reasonably require. Upon receipt of such an indemnity
duly executed, the Company shall, if the Debenture
remains outstanding, issue a replacement copy of the
Debenture Certificate to the person entitled thereto. If the
Debenture has been redeemed by the Company before 1
August 2016, the Company shall issue a replacement copy
of the certificate of entitlement to the Championships
Privileges to the person entitled thereto.
5.5	Subject as above, the Company shall register the
transfer and endorse a note of transfer on the Debenture
Certificate, and the Debenture Certificate shall then be
delivered to the transferee or his authorised agent. The
Company shall be entitled to retain the form of transfer.

- the Company shall not be required to give any notice to
the Debenture Holders of the draw but shall send out
the notices of redemption on the day after the draw is
made;
- the Company shall keep a record of the numbers of
Debentures selected in any such draw, and that record
shall be kept with the registrar of Debentures and be
open for inspection in the same way; and
- the certificate of the Secretary as to the result of any
such draw shall be final and conclusive evidence of the
result and the validity of the draw.
6.3	The Company shall give notice to Debenture Holders
within 28 days of the occurrence of any of the following
events:
- if an order is made or an effective resolution is passed
for the winding up of the Company or action is taken
for the appointment of an administrator;
- if an encumbrancer takes possession of, or a receiver
or administrative receiver is appointed over, any part
of the Company’s property; or
- if the Company ceases or threatens to cease to carry on
its business or substantially the whole or any material
part of it.
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A Debenture Holder may, within 14 days of receipt of
such notice from the Company, demand the repayment
of the Principal Money to him.
6.4 If there are joint Debenture Holders, the Principal
Money shall be deemed to be owing to them on a joint
account.
6.5	The Debenture Holder shall surrender the Debenture
Certificate to the Company for redemption by the date
on which the Principal Money is due to be repaid.
6.6	Any repayment of the Principal Money by the
Company shall be made by cheque payable to the order
of the Debenture Holder (or if there are joint Debenture
Holders, to the order of the one who is named first in the
register), which shall be sent by post to the registered
address of the payee, or to his bank if he has so requested
in writing. Neither the Company nor its officers shall be
responsible for any loss in transit. The Principal Money
shall be paid without regard to any equities that may
have existed between the Company and any previous
Debenture Holder. Payment by cheque in accordance
with this Condition shall be a good discharge by the
Company and its officers.
6.7 If, by the time that the Principal Money is due to be
repaid, the Debenture Holder has not surrendered his
Debenture Certificate to the Company in accordance
with Condition 6.5, or the Company is then unable to
trace him in order to make payment in accordance with
Condition 6.6, the Company may postpone redemption. If
the Debenture Certificate has not been surrendered four
months after the date redemption was due, the Company
shall select any person or persons, including if it wishes
itself or any of its officers (the “Trustee”, which term shall
include his or their successors), to whom it may pay the
amount of the Principal Money, which the Trustee shall
hold on trust for the Debenture Holder. Such payment
shall wholly satisfy the Company’s liability to repay the
Principal Money to the Debenture Holder and the Trustee’s
receipt shall be a good discharge to the Company and its
officers. The Trustee shall not be bound to invest the trust
monies, but may at his discretion pay them into a deposit
or current account with any bank, either in his own name
or in the name of any nominee of his. He shall be under no
obligation to identify or locate the Debenture Holder or
other person who may be entitled to the Principal Money,
or to retrieve the Debenture Certificate from him. Upon
the Debenture Holder or such other person establishing
his title to the Principal Money to the satisfaction of the
Trustee, the Trustee shall pay the amount of the Principal
Money plus any interest which has been earned on it, but
less any reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the
Trustee in relation to it, to that person in exchange for
the Debenture Certificate or any indemnity in respect
thereof pursuant to Condition 6.8 and an appropriate

receipt. While a Trustee holds the Principal Money in
respect of any Debenture, the Championships Privileges
in respect of that Debenture shall be suspended, and no
certificate of entitlement shall be issued in accordance
with Condition 4.5 during such suspension.
6.8	If any Debenture Certificate has been lost or destroyed,
the Company or the Trustee may accept in its place an
appropriate indemnity, which shall be in such form as the
Company or Trustee may reasonably require.

7. Powers of Debenture Holders
7.1 The Debenture Holders shall have the power to
sanction any arrangement between the Company and the
Debenture Holders or any modification or compromise of
the rights of the Debenture Holders against the Company
by Special Resolution passed at a General Meeting of
the Debenture Holders. A Special Resolution means a
resolution passed by a 75 per cent majority either on a
show of hands or on a poll.
7.2	A General Meeting of Debenture Holders shall be
governed by the terms of the Company’s Articles of
Association at the relevant time applicable to General
Meetings of shareholders of the Company, except as
expressly provided in these Conditions. The quorum
required shall be a majority in value of the holders of the
Debentures outstanding at the time, present in person or
by proxy. On a poll, each such holder of the outstanding
Debentures shall have one vote for each Debenture of
which he is a holder.

8. Communication
8.1 Subject to compliance with the Statutes, anything
sent or supplied by or to any person, including the
Company, may be sent or supplied, whether or not
because the Statutes require it to be sent or supplied, in
any way (including but not limited to electronic form and,
except in the case of anything supplied to the Company,
by making it available on a website) in which documents
or information required to be sent or supplied may be
sent or supplied by or to that person in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.
8.2	Except insofar as the Statutes require otherwise,
the Company shall not be obliged to accept any notice,
document or other information sent or supplied to
the Company in electronic form unless it satisfies such
stipulations, conditions or restrictions (including, without
limitation, for the purpose of authentication) as the
Directors think fit, and the Company shall be entitled to
require any such notice, document or information to be
sent or supplied in hard copy form instead.
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8.3	In the case of joint holders of a Debenture, all notices,
documents or other information shall be given to the
joint holder whose name stands first in the register of
Debenture Holders in respect of the joint holding and shall
be deemed to have been given to all the joint holders.

- if made available on a website in accordance with the
Statutes shall be deemed to have been received when
notification of its availability on the website is deemed
to have been received or, if later, when it is first made
available on the website;

8.4 	Any agreement by that holder that notices,
documents and other information may be sent or
supplied in electronic form or by being made available
on a website shall be binding on all the joint holders.

- not sent by post or other delivery service but served
or delivered personally or left by the Company at the
address for that Debenture Holder on the register shall
be deemed to have been served or delivered on the day
(whether or not it was a working day) and at the time it
was so left;

8.5	Any notice, document or other information:
- if sent by the Company by post or other delivery service
shall be deemed to have been received on the day
(whether or not it is a working day) following the day
(whether or not it was a working day) on which it was
put in the post or given to the delivery agent and, in
proving that it was duly sent, it shall be sufficient to
prove that the notice, document or information was
properly addressed, prepaid and put in the post or
duly given to the delivery agent, even if not actually
received;
- if sent by the Company by electronic means in accordance
with the Statutes shall be deemed to have been received
on the same day that it was sent, and proof that it was
sent in accordance with guidance issued by the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators shall be
conclusive evidence that it was sent;

- sent or supplied by the Company by any other means
agreed by the Debenture Holder concerned shall be
deemed to have been received when the Company has
duly performed the action it has agreed to take for that
purpose; and
- to be given by the Company by advertisement shall be
deemed to have been received on the day on which the
advertisement appears.
8.6	All documents and remittances sent by whatever
means by, or to, a Debenture Holder will be sent at the
Debenture Holder’s own risk and the Company shall have
no liability for the non-receipt of any such documents and
remittances.
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Part 6 – Further Terms and Conditions of Application

Set out below are further terms and conditions of
applications for Debentures:
1.	All applications are irrevocable. You will not be
entitled to exercise any remedy of rescission for innocent
misrepresentation at any time after acceptance of your
application.
2.	All applications are made subject to the terms and
conditions, and the information contained in, and
otherwise on the basis set out in this document, including
the Conditions. Multiple applications and suspected
multiple applications are liable to be rejected.
3.	The Company may accept your offer to subscribe by
notifying acceptance to you. The basis of allocation in
respect of applications made on the Application Form will
be determined by the Company in its absolute discretion.
If the Debenture Issue is over-subscribed, applicants may
receive fewer Debentures than they apply for or, in some
cases, none at all. However, applicants applying for two
or more Debentures may elect to receive a minimum
number of Debentures if their application is accepted in
part only. If no part of an application for Debentures is
accepted all monies paid on application will be returned
to the applicant (without interest). If an application for
Debentures is accepted in part, the applicant(s) will
receive (without interest) a crossed cheque in favour
of the applicant(s) as set out on the Application Form
through the post to the address of the first-named
applicant at the risk of the person(s) entitled to it for
the balance of the monies paid on application. The right
is reserved to reject, in whole or in part, or scale down
any or all application(s). Further details of the basis of
the allocation are set out in paragraph 6 of Part 3 of this
document.
4.	All cheques must be honoured on first presentation.
Any cheques not so honoured will result in rejection
of the Debenture application. Debentures will only be
allocated when cleared funds have been received by the
Company.
5.	Cheques and banker’s drafts received in connection
with the Debenture Issue will not be presented for
payment before 10 June 2011. Cheques and banker’s
drafts accompanying applications which are wholly
unsuccessful will not be cashed and will be returned to
the applicant.
6.	By completing an Application Form, you warrant that
you are not a person in the United States (as defined in
Regulation S under the US Securities Act), Canada, Japan
or Australia and are not applying on behalf of, or with a
view to re-offer, sale, renunciation, transfer or delivery to,

or for the benefit of, any such person. You also warrant
that, if the laws of any place outside the United Kingdom
are applicable to your application, you have complied
with all such laws and the Company will not infringe
any laws outside the United Kingdom as a result of the
acceptance of your application or any actions arising
from the rights and obligations under these terms and
conditions.
7.	If the person signing the Application Form is not the
applicant, that person warrants that he has the authority
to do so on behalf of the applicant and that this authority
is vested in him either by virtue of any power of attorney
(or a copy of which certified by a solicitor) which
accompanies the application, or as a duly authorised
officer or other representative of a corporation.
8.	All remittances, refunds, Debenture Certificates and
other correspondence will be sent at the risk of the
applicant(s) to the address stated on the Application Form
unless the Debenture Office of the Company, Church Road,
Wimbledon SW19 5AE is advised in writing.
9. Debenture Holders will be sent a reminder together
with a VAT invoice in advance of the date when the second
instalment becomes payable. The second instalment is
due to be paid by 31 January 2012. Instalment reminders
will be sent to the address of the Debenture Holder on
the register at the close of business on 30 December
2011. Debenture Holders will be liable to pay the
second instalment even if the reminder is not received.
Debenture Holders should therefore promptly notify
the Debenture Office of any change of address. Any
Debenture upon which the second instalment remains
unpaid after it has become due and payable and which
instalment has not been paid within 14 days of demand
of payment may be forfeited by a resolution of the
Directors and the Championships Privileges shall cease
to be enjoyed in relation to such forfeited Debenture. If
you sell or transfer your Debenture prior to payment of
the second instalment, the transferee will become liable
for the second instalment (as the case may be) once the
transfer has been registered.
10. In the case of a joint application, the liability of
applicants is joint and several. Joint holders must all be
aged 18 or over.
11. Your application, any acceptance of that application
and the contract resulting therefrom will be governed by,
and construed in accordance with, the laws of England.
For the exclusive benefit of the Company, you irrevocably
submit to the jurisdiction of the English courts in respect
of these matters. This does not prevent an action being
taken against you in any other jurisdiction.
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Part 7 – Information about the Company

1. Introduction
The Company owns the tennis courts, grounds and
buildings in Wimbledon, London SW19, known as The
All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club, at which The
Championships are held. The shares of the Company are
currently owned in equal proportions by the Club and the
LTA. On 14 May 2009, the Company and the LTA entered
into an agreement for the sale by the LTA of its shares in
the Company to the Club and/or the Company and for
the Club to become the sole shareholder. Completion
of the agreement is due to take place on 1 August 2013,
conditional upon the holding of The Championships in
2013. It is intended that this agreement will be ultimately
novated to The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club
Limited following the proposed incorporation of the Club.
The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries, both
of which are dormant.
The Club, through the Committee of Management of The
Championships, is responsible for staging arguably the
world’s leading tennis tournament, and is a private club
founded in 1868 originally as The All England Croquet
Club, and its first ground was situated off Worple Road,
Wimbledon.
The LTA is the governing body of British tennis, whose
aim is to grow tennis throughout the country at all
levels; from the grass roots of the game, to success
on the international stage. The LTA works with clubs,
schools and local authorities to make tennis accessible,
affordable and attractive to everyone, regardless of age
or background.

2. Business overview and principal
activities of the Company
The Company derives substantially all of its income from
a facility fee paid to it for the use of the Grounds by The
Championships, which is the only Grand Slam tennis
event still held on grass. The Championships attract an
attendance of close to 500,000 people and, through
press, radio and television, a following of hundreds of
millions throughout the world.
The Company issues debentures for Centre Court
and No.1 Court, currently every five years, to fund the
continuing development of the facilities at the Grounds
for the benefit of all participants including spectators,
players, the media and debenture holders.
Recent development activity
Since 2006, the Company has completed the construction
of the new retractable roof over Centre Court and has
redeveloped many of the facilities within Centre Court
including new restaurants, bars and other facilities for
Centre Court debenture holders and the public.
In addition, there has been considerable redevelopment
of those parts of the Grounds to the south of Centre
Court, including the construction of a new Court 2, which
was used for the first time at the 2009 Championships,
and the construction of a new Court 3 which is scheduled
to be used for the first time at the 2011 Championships.
The Company is currently constructing terraces over
the south-west and south-east staircases of No.1 Court
which will accommodate a new restaurant and bar for
No.1 Court debenture holders on the same level as the
existing No.1 Court Debenture Holders’ Lounge. These
new terraces will significantly increase the quantity of
space available to No.1 Court debenture holders and
will, for the first time, provide outdoor space for eating,
drinking and relaxation.
Future development activity
The Company has planning consent to extend the
Millennium Building to provide significantly increased
space for the competitors which is designed to enhance
their experience of The Championships.
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Part 8 – Audited Historical Financial Information

Set out below are the annual reports and audited
financial statements for the Group for the years ended 31
July 2009 and 31 July 2010 respectively. These have been
directly extracted from the Group’s accounts as filed with
Companies’ House.

(A) year ended 31 July 2009
Report of the Directors
The directors submit their annual report on the affairs
of the group together with the financial statements and
auditors’ report for the year ended 31 July 2009.

1. Principal activities
The group’s principal activities are the ownership and
development of grounds in Wimbledon, London SW19,
which are made available for the playing of lawn tennis and
croquet generally and for the staging of the Wimbledon
Championships (‘The Championships’) specifically. There
have not been any significant changes in the group’s
principal activities in the year under review. The directors
are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major
changes in the group’s activities in the next year.
As shown in the analysis of turnover on page 47, the
majority of the group’s income is from the facility
fee associated with holding the annual Wimbledon
Championships. This has increased over the prior year
by £343,000.

2. Business review
The group continues its Long Term Plan to develop the
grounds. Over the last decade, the group has invested in
the Long Term Plan to ensure that The Championships
are provided with high quality facilities for players,
spectators, media and staff. The group has completed the
construction of a new No.1 Court, the Millennium Building,
the Museum Building and the Broadcast Centre. During
the financial year ended 31 July 2009, the group also
completed its multi-year project to redevelop and install
a retractable roof on Centre Court which accounted for
the majority of the £41,877,000 of fixed asset additions
during the year (2008: £70,978,000). During the financial
year, the group also completed a new Court 2. In addition,
in July 2009, the group started to demolish old Court 2
and to build a new Court 3 which is scheduled to be ready
in time for the 2011 Championships.
The increase in depreciation to £10,930,000 (2008:
£4,075,000) reflects the commencement of depreciation
on Centre Court and new Court 2 with effect from 1 August
2008. By the year ending 31 July 2012, the facility fee will
increase to provide a 2% return on the expenditure on
Centre Court, new Court 2 and other capital expenditure

since 1 August 2004. However, the increase in the facility
fee will be phased in over a number of years, reflecting
the profitability of The Championships.
Historically, the group has been able to fund the
development of its grounds from cash inflows generated
through its facility fee and the issue of debentures.
However, due to the magnitude of expenditure on the
Centre Court project, the group arranged a £75,000,000
term loan facility with HSBC in August 2007. As at 31 July
2009, the group had drawn down all £75,000,000 (2008:
57,000,000) of this term loan.
As at 31 July 2009, the net book value of the group’s fixed
assets stood at £330,864,000 (2008: £301,600,000), cash
balances stood at £3,940,000 (2008: £4,927,000) and long
term borrowings stood at £85,025,000 (2008: £62,025,000)
representing the £75,000,000 loan and the nominal value
of the three most recent debenture issues.
In May 2009, the group announced the successful issue of
2,500 debentures relating to the 2011-15 Championships.
Proceeds amounting to £15,000,000 (net of VAT) were
received in the year ended 31 July 2009 and proceeds
totalling a further £45,000,000 are due to be received in the
two subsequent years. £5,000,000 of these proceeds will
be repayable on 3 August 2015. The proceeds will be used
to help repay the £75,000,000 loan in accordance with a
repayment schedule running through to 31 January 2015.
On 14 May 2009 the group, the Lawn Tennis Association
(‘the LTA’) and The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club
(‘the Club’) agreed arrangements for the continuation of
their relationship in respect of The Championships for
at least a further 40 years from 1 August 2013. Under
these arrangements, the Club will purchase the LTA’s
shares in the group as at 1 August 2013 subject to certain
conditions being satisfied. In addition, the group will
receive a facility fee broadly protected against inflation
for 40 years based on the facility fee received for the year
ending 31 July 2013.

3. Group results
The consolidated operating loss of £2,185,000 (2008:
profit £4,914,000) was worse than the prior year due to a
significant increase in depreciation. The loss after taxation
of £5,601,000 (2008: profit £1,420,000) was worse than the
prior year due primarily to higher depreciation and higher
interest payable on bank borrowings. In both years the
group took write-downs on the undepreciated net book
value of fixed assets that were demolished. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2008: £nil)
and, after transfers of £6,259,000 (2008: (£2,145,000))
from/(to) the Championships Rebuilding Reserve, a
retained profit of £658,000 (2008: loss £725,000) has been
transferred to profit and loss reserves.

the championships
36

4. Principal operational risks and
uncertainties
The key operational risk faced by the group relates to
completion of construction work around the grounds.
This risk involves the cost of construction materials, the
use of sub-contract labour and the pressure to complete
the construction work and clear the site in time for each
year’s Wimbledon Championships.
The group manages these risks by only working with
long standing and approved contractors, purchasing
materials or securing materials’ prices as much in advance
as possible to limit exposure to price changes and by
continuing actively to manage and control the Long
Term Plan through regular reporting and management
meetings.
The experience of the directors and secretary in managing
construction projects and the financial implications
associated with such projects is a significant asset in the
management of these risks.
In any event, the magnitude of these risks has reduced
significantly following the completion of the Centre
Court project and the successful deployment of the new
retractable roof during the 2009 Championships.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because HSBC,
the counterparty, is a bank which has high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies and which
has not required any explicit government support.
The group’s credit risk is attributable to receivables with
substantially all of its receivables being due from the Club
which stages The Championships on the group’s grounds
and which is one of the controlling parties (see note
25). In view of this concentration of risk, the company’s
directors are kept informed of any material changes in
the financial strength of The Championships which have
been highly profitable for many years.
Liquidity and cash flow risk
Historically, the group has been able to fund the
improvement and refurbishment of its grounds from cash
inflows generated through its facility fee and the issue of
debentures. However, as expected, in the years ended 31
July 2008 and 2009, the group’s capital expenditure on
its Long Term Plan exceeded its cash flows. As a result,
the group signed a long-term £75,000,000 secured loan
facility on 31 August 2007 which was used to fund capital
expenditure. The group also arranged back-up borrowing
facilities with its shareholders which were not required
during the year ended 31 July 2009.

6. Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The loan facility is due to be repaid according to an
agreed repayment schedule using receipts from the
annual facility fee and future issues of debentures.
The directors are confident that The Championships
will continue to pay the facility fee and that successful
applicants for the 2011-15 Centre Court debenture issue
will meet their obligation to pay a further £45 million over
the next two years.

The board recognises the group’s activities expose it
to a number of financial risks including price risk, credit
risk, liquidity and cash flow risk and interest rate risk.
The board recognises these risks and the importance of
managing them. Accordingly, the group uses a variety of
tools to monitor and control these risks although it does
not currently use derivative financial instruments.

Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to interest rate risk since the interest
payable on the loan facility floats in line with LIBOR. The
directors have explored the possibility of using interest
rate swap contracts to manage this risk but, in view of
the historically low level of LIBOR, have decided not to
fix interest rates.

Price risk
The group is exposed to price risk in the construction
industry in the context of its Long Term Plan to develop
the grounds. Construction price pressures have weakened
significantly over the last year but the group’s quantity
surveyors continue to prepare regular formal reports with
forecasts of Long Term Plan expenditure for presentation
to and review by the board.

7. Creditors payment policy

5. Post-balance sheet events
There have been no significant post-balance sheet events
since the balance sheet date.

It is the group’s policy to ensure that all creditors are
paid in accordance with agreed terms and conditions
once a satisfactory service has been delivered. The
company’s creditor payment period for the year ended
31 July 2009 was 33 days (2008 - 22 days).

Credit risk
The group’s financial assets are primarily cash, short-term
deposits and other liquid funds and receivables.

wimbledon
37

8. Directors

9. Auditors

The directors during the year under review were:

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of
approval of this report confirms that:

‘A’ Directors
J A H Curry (Chairman), J S Dunningham, T D Phillips.
‘B’ Directors
P W Bretherton, D P Howorth, S G Smith.
In accordance with the Articles of Association, the three
‘A’ directors are appointed by the Club and the three
‘B’ directors by the LTA. Subject to the provisions of
the Articles of Association, one ‘A’ director and one ‘B’
director are required to retire on 31 January in each year,
but are eligible for re-appointment.

(1) so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the company’s auditors are
unaware; and
(2) the director has taken all steps that he ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of S418 of the Companies
Act 2006.

No directors’ remuneration is payable.
Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to accept
reappointment as auditors of the company for a further
term in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006.
Approved by order of the Board of Directors and signed
on behalf of the Board
R. G. ATKINSON
Secretary
9 November 2009
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). The financial statements
are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and the group and of the profit
or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF THE ALL ENGLAND LAWN
TENNIS GROUND PLC
We have audited the financial statements of The All
England Lawn Tennis Ground plc for the year ended 31
July 2009 which comprise the consolidated profit and
loss account, the consolidated and company balance
sheets, the consolidated cash flow statement, and the
related notes 1 to 25. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as
a body, in accordance with sections 495 and 496 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors
and auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for
Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial
statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s
and the parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the directors; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
- give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and
the parent company’s affairs as at 31 July 2009 and of
the group’s profit for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.
Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or
- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.
Mark Goodey (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom
9 November 2009
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 31 July

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
Year ended 31 July

Turnover

Notes

2009
£000

2008
£000

1, 2

10,713

10,310

(126)

Cost of sales
Gross Profit

10,587

(47)
10,263

(12,814)

(4,952)

Write down of fixed assets

4

(1,683)

(397)

Other income

4

1,725

Administrative expenses

Operating (Loss)/profit

(2,185)

4,914

(2,702)

(1,721)

Interest payable and similar charges

5

Interest receivable and other income

6

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation

7

(4,840)

Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

8

(761)

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities after taxation

-

47

(5,601)

223
3,416
(1,996)
1,420

6,259

(2,145)

Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year

658

(725)

Balance brought forward from previous year

15,845

16,570

Profit and loss account carried forward

16,503

15,845

Transfer from/(to) Championships Rebuilding Reserve

18

All results are from continuing operations and there are no recognised gains or losses other than the profit disclosed in the
above profit and loss account for the current or preceding year. Accordingly, no statement of total recognised gains and losses
is presented.

Notes

2009
£000

2008
£000

Tangible assets

10

330,864

301,600

Investments

11

360

360

331,224

301,960

Fixed Assets

Current assets
Debtors - falling due within one year

12

2,728

375

Debtors - falling due after more than one year

12

6,059

6,059

Amount due from The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club

13

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors

4,927

13,427

11,361

(520)

Amount due to The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club

13

Other creditors

14

(8,149)
-

Corporation tax payable

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

(169)
(229)
(5,278)
(562)

(8,669)

(6,238)

4,758

5,123

335,982

307,083

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

15

(85,025)

(62,025)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

16

(13,204)

(11,704)

237,753

233,354

17
18

58
221,192

58
217,451

16,503

15,845

23

237,753

233,354

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Other reserves
Profit and loss account
Shareholders’ funds
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 November 2009.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors
J A H CURRY
D P HOWORTH
Directors
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 July

Company Balance Sheet
at 31 July
Notes

2009
£000

2008
£000

Fixed Assets

Notes

Net cash flow from operating activities

Tangible assets

10

330,864

301,600

Investments

11

381

381

331,245

301,981

Current assets
Debtors - falling due within one year

12

2,728

375

Debtors - falling due after more than one year

12

6,059

6,059

Amount due from The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club

13

700

-

3,940

4,927

13,427

11,361

Cash at bank and in hand

(520)

Amount due to The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club

13

Other creditors

14

(8,149)
-

Corporation tax payable

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

15
16

(169)
(229)
(5,278)
(562)

United Kingdom Corporation tax paid

(37,984)

(59,388)

(13,204)

(11,704)

237,753

233,354

15,845
233,354

Financing
18,000

Long term loan

(5)

Net cash inflow from financing
Decrease in cash in the year

57,000
(22)

15,000

32,995

21

(987)

The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc includes as liquid resources term deposits of less than one year.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 November 2009.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors
J A H CURRY
D P HOWORTH
Directors
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(74,136)

(33,982)

First Tranche 2011-2015 Centre Court Series

16,503

(518)

Cash outflow before use of liquid resources
and financing

Redemption 2001-2005 Centre Court Series

237,753

(360)

(74,136)

(62,046)

23

Profit and loss account

(1,498)

(37,984)

(85,046)

217,451

(2,655)

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Debentures

221,192

223
(1,721)

Capital expenditure and financial investment

307,104

18

£000

Taxation

336,003

Other reserves
Shareholders’ funds

Net cash inflow from returns on
investments and servicing of finance

5,123

58

2008

16,764

(2,702)

Interest paid

4,758

58

£000

47

Interest received

(6,238)

17

£000

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

(8,669)

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

2009

7,017

20

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors

£000
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56,978
(2,410)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2009

1. Accounting Policies

2. Analysis of Turnover

(b) Basis of accounting. The consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of The
All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc and its subsidiary
undertakings.

(e) Deferred taxation. In accordance with FRS19
“Deferred Taxation”, deferred taxation is provided in
full on all timing differences that result in an obligation
at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to
pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply
when they crystallise, based on current tax rates and
law. Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items
of income and expenditure in taxation computations in
periods different from those in which they are included in
financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that
they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

(c) Tangible fixed assets. Tangible fixed assets are stated
at cost, net of depreciation. Depreciation is not provided
on freehold land. On other assets, it is provided on cost in
equal annual instalments over the estimated lives of the
assets. The rates of depreciation are as follows:

Current taxation, including United Kingdom corporation
tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected
to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Freehold buildings, expenditure on grounds etc.
(see note 10)
2%
Pavilion at Raynes Park Sports Ground
4%
Plant and machinery
5%–10%
Fixtures and fittings
20%
Museum equipment
10%–20%
Museum exhibits, library books, films etc.
(see note 10)
0%–10%

(f) Turnover. The figure for turnover represents sales
to third parties net of value added tax and facility fees
payable by The Championships.
(g) Investments. Shares in group companies are stated at
cost less provision for impairment in value. Investments
held as current assets are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Other income of £1,725,000 (2008 – £nil) represents a financial settlement following a legal dispute with the architects
who specified the wood cladding of the Millennium Building. The write down of fixed assets relates to impairment to
the wood cladding of the Millennium Building ahead of refurbishment in 2010 and components of the former Court 2
complex removed as part of the Long Term Plan. In 2008 the write down related to components of the Centre Court
complex and included parts of the East Stand, former museum extension and galleries, and seating.

(d) Stocks. Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

(h) Interest receivable. Interest on investments credited
in the financial statements is accrued on a day-to-day
basis.

5. Interest payable and similar charges

The principal accounting policies are summarised below.
All have been applied consistently throughout the
current and preceding year.
(a) Accounting convention. The financial statements are
prepared under the historical cost convention.

(i) Going concern. The group is funded on an ongoing
basis by the facility fee received from The Championships
and by the issue of debentures and since 31 August 2007
has also had a long-term secured loan facility with HSBC.
The board of Directors is satisfied that on the basis of the
group’s cash flow projections and the funding sources in
place, it is appropriate for the financial statements to be
prepared on a going concern basis.

Facility fees payable by The Championships
Facility fees payable by the Wimbledon Museum
Other

2008
£000

9,345

9,002

25

25

1,343

1,283

10,713

10,310

All turnover is derived in the United Kingdom.

3. Information regarding Directors and Employees
Directors’ Emoluments: The directors received no remuneration during the financial year (2008 - £nil).
No people were employed during the year (2008 – £nil) excluding directors.

4. Other income and write down of fixed assets

Interest payable

6. Interest receivable and other income
Interest on bank deposits
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2009
£000
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2009
£000

2008
£000

2,702

1,721

2,702

1,721

2009
£000

2008
£000

47

223

47

223

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2009
continued

7. (Loss)/Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

8. Tax on (Loss)/Profit on Ordinary Activities
2009
£000

2008
£000

10,930

4,075

Write down of tangible fixed assets

1,683

397

Auditors’ remuneration – audit fees

24

14

Current year tax (credit)/charge for the year

Taxation services

68

59

Adjustment in respect of prior years - deferred taxation

2008
£000

461

991

Current Tax:

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation is after charging:
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets

2009
£000

United Kingdom corporation tax at 28% (2008 – 28% and 30%)
Adjustment in respect of prior years - corporation tax

Deferred taxation - capital allowances in excess of depreciation (see note 16)

The analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:
Fees payable to the company’s auditors for the audit
of the company’s annual accounts

24

14

Fees payable to the company’s auditors and their associates for other services
to the group – all amounts relate to tax services in both years

68

59

Total auditors’ remuneration

92

73

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the company are not required to be disclosed
because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

(1,200)

-

(739)

991

1,156

-

344

1,005

761

1,996

2009
£000

2008
£000

Reconciliation of current year taxation charge

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation

(4,840)

3,416

Tax (credit)/charge on profit on ordinary activities

(1,355)

1,002

Factors affecting charge:
2,160

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes

(344)

Capital allowances in excess of depreciation
Prior period adjustments
Current taxation (credit)/charge for the year

1,042
(1,053)

(1,200)

-

(739)

991

9. Profit of Parent Company
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the parent company is not
presented as part of these financial statements. The consolidated profit and loss account includes a loss after taxation
of £5,068,000 (2008: profit of £1,420,000) which is attributable to the parent company.
The balance on the profit and loss account of the parent company carried forward, after adding the profit after taxation
for the financial year and after transferring £6,259,000 from the Championships Rebuilding Reserve (2008: transferring
£2,145,000 to the Championships Rebuilding Reserve), is a surplus of £17,036,000 (2008: £15,845,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2009
continued

10. Tangible Fixed Assets

THE GROUP

The Group and The Company
Freehold
land &
buildings
£000

Plant &
equipment
£000

Exhibits,
films &
library books
£000

Total
£000

340,448

1,642

1,288

343,378

41,836

-

41

41,877

Cost
At 1 August 2008
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

-

-

379,856

1,642

1,329

382,827

Depreciation
At 1 August 2008

39,352

1,642

784

41,778

Charge for the year

10,930

-

-

10,930

-

-

49,537

1,642

784

51,963

Net book value
31 July 2009

330,319

-

545

330,864

31 July 2008

301,096

-

504

301,600

Total at 31 July 2009

Disposals during the year
Total at 31 July 2009

THE COMPANY

(2,428)

(745)

Depreciation is not charged on freehold land with a cost of £8,749,000 (2008: £8,749,000).
The additions to freehold land and buildings include £41,836,000 (2008: £70,870,000) of expenditure on the Long
Term Plan for the development of the Wimbledon grounds.
Freehold land and buildings have been provided as security against the loan (see note 15).

(2,428)

(745)

Freehold
land &
buildings
£000

Plant &
equipment
£000

Exhibits,
films &
library books
£000

Total
£000

11. Investments held as Fixed Assets
THE GROUP
2009
2008
£000
£000

360

360

360

-

-

21

21

360

360

381

381

Country of
Registration

Activity

Class of
Share

% Shares
Held

England & Wales
England & Wales

Dormant
Dormant

Ordinary
Ordinary

100
100

The Queen’s Club
Shares in subsidiary undertakings at cost

340,448

1,642

1,288

343,378

Additions during the year

41,836

-

41

41,877

Disposals during the year

(2,428)

-

-

379,856

1,642

1,329

382,827

Depreciation
At 1 August 2008

39,352

1,642

784

41,778

Charge for the year

10,930

-

-

10,930

-

-

49,537

1,642

784

51,963

Net book value
31 July 2009

330,319

-

545

330,864

31 July 2008

301,096

-

504

301,600

Total at 31 July 2009

Disposals during the year
Total at 31 July 2009

(745)
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At 31 July 2009, the following undertakings were subsidiaries of the company:

The All England Motor Park Limited
The Wimbledon Lawn Tennis Museum Limited

Cost
At 1 August 2008

the company
2009
2008
£000
£000

(2,428)

(745)

wimbledon
51

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2009
continued

12. Debtors

THE GROUP
2009
2008
£000
£000

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
£000
£000

Falling due within one year:

14. Other Creditors
THE GROUP
2009
£000

VAT

Trade debtors

1

29

1

29

VAT

9

-

9

-

537

-

537

-

2,181

346

2,181

346

2,728

375

2,728

375

LTA

6,059

6,059

6,059

6,059

Total debtors

8,787

6,434

8,787

6,434

Corporation tax
Prepayments and accrued income

Debenture creditors
Other creditors

THE COMPANY

2008
£000

2009
£000

2008
£000

498

-

498

-

235

240

235

240

7,914

4,540

7,914

4,540

8,149

5,278

8,149

5,278

15. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Due after more than one year:

THE GROUP

The loan to the LTA is not repayable before 2013.

Loan
The All England Motor Park Limited

13. Amount due from/(to) The Club in respect of The Championships, Wimbledon

Debentures: 2006-2010 Centre Court Series
Debentures: 2007-2011 No.1 Court Series

The following related party transactions have occurred during the year ended 31 July 2009 with the Club
THE GROUP
£000

Due to the Club at 1 August 2008

(229)

Debentures: 2011-2015 Centre Court Series

THE COMPANY
£000

(229)

Facility fees payable by The Championships

9,370

9,370

Interface costs payable by The Championships

1,487

1,487

VAT charged in year

1,628

1,628

(12,584)

(12,584)

1,028
700

1,028
700

Payments
Sundry costs and receipts recharged
Due from the Club at 31 July 2009

2008
£000

2009
£000

2008
£000

75,000

57,000

75,000

57,000

-

-

21

21

4,600

4,600

4,600

4,600
425

425

425

425

5,000

-

5,000

-

85,025

62,025

85,046

62,046

The loan is secured on the freehold property known as the All England Lawn Tennis Ground, Church Road, Wimbledon. Interest
is payable at a floating rate based on LIBOR. The loan is repayable based on an agreed repayment schedule by 31 July 2015.
The 2006-2010 Centre Court debentures which are free of interest and unsecured are repayable at par on 1 August 2010.
The 2007-2011 No.1 Court debentures which are free of interest and unsecured are repayable at par on 1 August 2011.
The 2011-2015 Centre Court debentures which are free of interest and unsecured are repayable at par on 3 August 2015.
The loan from The All England Motor Park Limited is interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.

In accordance with FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, transactions with other undertakings within the group have not been
disclosed in these financial statements.
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THE COMPANY

2009
£000
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2009
continued

16. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation movement for the year:

At 1 August

THE GROUP

18. Other Reserves

THE COMPANY

2009
£000

2008
£000

2009
£000

2008
£000

11,704

10,699

11,704

10,699

THE GROUP

Charge to profit and loss account

At 1 August 2008

Deferred taxation

Debenture premiums received

- current year
- prior year
At 31 July

344

1,005

344

1,005

1,156

-

1,156

-

13,204

11,704

13,204

11,704

Debenture Championships
Premium
Rebuilding
Reserve
Reserve
£000
£000

THE GROUP

THE COMPANY

2009
£000

2008
£000

2009
£000

2008
£000

Capital allowances in excess of depreciation

13,204

11,704

13,204

11,704

Closing balance

13,204

11,704

13,204

11,704

2009
£

2008
£

Analysis of deferred tax

17. Called up Share Capital

31,293

56

217,451

10,000

-

-

10,000

-

THE COMPANY

At 1 August 2008
Debenture premiums received

(6,259)

-

(6,259)

196,102

25,034

56

221,192

£000

£000

£000

£000

186,102

31,293

56

217,451

10,000

-

-

10,000

Transferred to profit and loss account

-

At 31 July 2009

TOTAL
£000

186,102

Transferred to profit and loss account
At 31 July 2009

Other
Reserves
£000

(6,259)

196,102

25,034

56

(6,259)
221,192

The Championships Rebuilding Reserve has been established to set aside funds to meet the potential long term rebuilding
costs of facilities for staging The Championships. The reserve will be transferred to the profit and loss account over the next
five years as the group incurs higher depreciation related to the Centre Court building project. Accordingly the reserve will be
fully transferred by 31 July 2013.
Other Reserves comprise the Lord Ritchie Library Fund and General Reserve.
The reserves are all non-distributable.

Authorised, called up, allotted and fully paid
29,078 ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of £1 each

29,078

29,078

29,078 ‘B’ Ordinary Shares of £1 each

29,078

29,078

58,156

58,156

19. Capital commitments
THE GROUP

The ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and ‘B’ Ordinary Shares rank pari passu.
The beneficial ownership of the ‘A’ Ordinary shares rests with the Club; the beneficial ownership of the ‘B’ Ordinary shares rests
with the LTA.

Contracted but not provided for in these accounts
These capital commitments relate wholly to the Long Term Plan.
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THE COMPANY

2009
£000

2008
£000

2009
£000

2008
£000

19,211

43,484

19,211

43,484

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2009
continued

20. Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2009
£000

2008
£000

23. Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds

2009
£000

2008
£000

Operating (Loss)/profit

(2,185)

4,914

(Loss)/profit for the year

(5,601)

Depreciation charge

10,930

4,075

Premium on 2,500 Centre Court debentures

10,000

-

1,683

397

Opening shareholders’ funds

233,354

231,934

Closing shareholders’ funds

237,753

233,354

Write down of fixed assets
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors

21. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
Decrease in cash in the year
Cash inflow from long term loans

(2,516)

6,720

(895)

658

7,017

16,764

2009
£000

2008
£000

(987)

(2,410)

(18,000)

(57,000)

5

Redemption 2001-2005 Centre Court debenture series

22

First tranche 2011-2015 Centre Court debenture series

(15,000)

Change in net funds resulting from cash flows
Transfer debenture premiums to reserves

(33,982)
10,000

(59,388)
-

(23,982)

(59,388)

-

Net funds at 1 August 2008 and 1 August 2007

(57,338)

2,026

Net funds at 31 July 2009 and 31 July 2008

(81,320)

(57,338)

1,420

In the opinion of the directors, the nature of the premiums received on the debentures is not a finance item within the
spirit of Financial Reporting Standard 4. The premiums are received by the Company because the debentures carry the
privilege to receive Centre and No.1 Court tickets for future Championships. This privilege is conveyed by the shareholders
of the Company, rather than by the Company itself, and accordingly the premiums received are recognised as a movement
in Shareholders’ Funds. The value of the Centre and No.1 Court tickets for the 2009 Championships was £2,236,217.

24. Pension Scheme
All of the employees of The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc and its subsidiaries, and their associated pension
benefits and obligations, were transferred to the Club on 1 October 2004.
Eligible former employees of The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc and its subsidiaries are members of The All
England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club Pension and Assurance Scheme, a defined benefit scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held in separate Trustee-administered funds.
The group has had no employees since 1 October 2004, and therefore no financial obligations are reported in these
accounts under FRS17.

25. Controlling Party
The beneficial ownership of All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc rests jointly, 50% with the Club and 50% with the LTA.

22. Analysis of net funds
At 1 August
2008
£000

Cash at bank and in hand

4,927

Long term loan

(57,000)

Debentures due within one year

(240)

Debentures due after one year
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Cash Flow
£000

(987)
(18,000)
5

At 31 July
2009
£000

3,940
(75,000)
(235)

(5,025)

(5,000)

(10,025)

(57,338)

(23,982)

(81,320)
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(B) year ended 31 July 2010

for the year ended 31 July 2011 only, it would be reduced
if The Championships were to suffer a fall in profitability.

Report of the Directors
The directors submit their annual report on the affairs
of the group together with the financial statements and
auditors’ report for the year ended 31 July 2010.

1. Principal activities
The group’s principal activities are the ownership and
development of grounds in Wimbledon, London SW19,
which are made available for the playing of lawn tennis and
croquet generally and for the staging of the Wimbledon
Championships (‘The Championships’) specifically. There
have not been any significant changes in the group’s
principal activities in the year under review. The directors
are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major
changes in the group’s activities in the next year. As shown
in the analysis of turnover on page 71, the majority of the
group’s income is from the facility fee associated with
holding the annual Wimbledon Championships.

2. Business review
The group continues its Long Term Plan to develop the
grounds in order to ensure that The Championships
are provided with high quality facilities for players,
spectators, media and staff. Over the last 15 years, the
group has invested substantially in the Long Term Plan
constructing a new No.1 Court, the Broadcast Centre,
the Millennium Building, the Museum Building and a new
Court 2 and also comprehensively redeveloping Centre
Court including installing a retractable roof in order to
allow play to take place in wet weather.
During the financial year ended 31 July 2010, the group
continued the implementation of the Long Term Plan
with a two year project to redevelop the south-west part
of the grounds including the demolition of old Court 2
and the start of construction of new Courts 3 and 4 and
a number of other buildings which will meet the needs
of the groundstaff and the building maintenance teams.
This two year project is on track to be ready in time for
the 2011 Championships. It accounted for substantially
all of the group’s fixed asset additions of £11,921,000
during the financial year (2009: £41,877,000).
The depreciation charge of £10,618,000 (2009:
£10,930,000) reflects the commencement of depreciation
on capital expenditure on Centre Court and new Court
2 with effect from 1 August 2008. The facility fee of
£13,425,000 (2009: £9,415,000) increased to provide a
2% return on capital expenditure on Centre Court and
new Court 2 and on other capital expenditure since 1
August 2004. The facility fee will increase in each of the
next three financial years in line with inflation although,

Historically, the group has been able to fund the
development of its grounds from cash inflows generated
through its facility fee and the issue of debentures.
However, due to the magnitude of expenditure on
redeveloping Centre Court, the group arranged a
£75,000,000 secured term loan with HSBC on 31 August
2007 which was drawn down in full during the year ended
31 July 2009. As at 31 July 2010, the outstanding balance
on this loan stood at £65,000,000 (2009: £75,000,000)
with the first repayment having been made in accordance
with the repayment schedule agreed with HSBC.
In May 2009, the group announced the successful issue
of 2,500 Centre Court debentures relating to the 201115 Championships. Proceeds amounting to £22,500,000
(net of VAT) were received in the year ended 31 July
2010 (2009: £15,000,000) as a result of which the
balance on the Debenture Premium Reserve increased
to £218,602,000 (2009: £196,102,000). Proceeds totalling
a further £22,500,000 are due to be received by 31
January 2011. The proceeds will be used to help repay
the £75,000,000 loan in accordance with a repayment
schedule running through to 31 January 2015.
As at 31 July 2010, the net book value of the group’s
tangible fixed assets stood at £329,696,000 (2009:
£330,864,000), cash balances stood at £12,952,000
(2009: £3,940,000) and long term borrowings stood
at £55,425,000 (2009: £85,025,000) representing the
outstanding long term balance on the loan facility of
£50,000,000 and the nominal value of the two most
recent debenture issues including the issue relating to
the 2011-15 Championships.
On 14 May 2009 the group, the Lawn Tennis Association
(‘the LTA’) and The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club
(‘the Club’) agreed arrangements for the continuation of
their relationship in respect of The Championships for
at least a further 40 years from 1 August 2013. Under
these arrangements, the Club will purchase the LTA’s
shares in the group as at 1 August 2013 subject to certain
conditions being satisfied. In addition, the group will
receive a facility fee broadly protected against inflation
for 40 years based on the facility fee received for the year
ending 31 July 2013.

3. Group results
The consolidated operating profit of £3,194,000 (2009:
loss £2,185,000) was significantly better than the prior
year due primarily to an increase in the facility fee
associated with staging The Championships and to the
absence of write downs on fixed assets. The profit after
taxation of £1,320,000 (2009: loss £5,601,000) was also
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significantly better than the prior year due to the increase
in the facility fee, the absence of write downs and to
interest payable on bank borrowings falling to £624,000
(2009: £2,702,000).
The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend (2009: £nil) and, after transfers of £6,259,000
(2009: £6,259,000) from the Championships Rebuilding
Reserve, a retained profit of £7,579,000 (2009: £658,000)
has been transferred to the profit and loss account.

4. Principal operational risks and
uncertainties
The key operational risk faced by the group relates to
completion of construction work around the grounds.
This risk involves the cost of construction materials, the
use of sub-contract labour and the pressure to complete
the construction work and clear the site in time for each
year’s Wimbledon Championships.
The group manages these risks by only working with long
standing and approved contractors, purchasing materials
as much in advance as possible to limit exposure to price
changes and by continuing actively to manage and
control the Long Term Plan through regular reporting
and management meetings.
The experience of the directors and Secretary in managing
construction projects and the financial implications
associated with such projects is a significant asset in the
management of these risks.
In any event, the magnitude of these risks has
reduced significantly following the completion of the
redevelopment of Centre Court and the successful
deployment of the new retractable roof during the 2009
and 2010 Championships.

5. Post-balance sheet events
Since 1 August 2010, the group has refunded substantially
all of the £4,600,000 nominal value of the Centre Court
debentures relating to the 2006-10 Championships.
Under the terms of the debenture prospectus, the group
was contractually committed to refund the nominal value
of a debenture on 2 August 2010 provided that the holder
of the debenture had returned the relevant debenture
certificate.
In September 2010, the company and the Club signed
a “venue use agreement” with the London Organising
Committee of the Olympic Games and Paralympic
Games Limited (“LOCOG”) which sets out the terms and
conditions under which the company’s grounds will be
used by LOCOG to stage the tennis event at the 2012
London Olympics.

6. Financial risk management
objectives and policies
The board recognises the group’s activities expose it
to a number of financial risks including price risk, credit
risk, liquidity and cash flow risk and interest rate risk.
The board recognises these risks and the importance of
managing them. Accordingly, the group uses a variety of
tools to monitor and control these risks although it does
not currently use derivative financial instruments.
Price risk
The group is exposed to price risk in the construction
industry in the context of its Long Term Plan to develop
the grounds. Construction price pressures have weakened
significantly over the last two years but the group’s
quantity surveyors continue to prepare regular formal
reports with forecasts of Long Term Plan expenditure for
presentation to and review by the board.
Credit risk
The group’s financial assets are primarily cash, short-term
deposits and other liquid funds and receivables.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because HSBC,
the counterparty, is a bank which has continued to be
assigned high credit ratings by international credit rating
agencies.
The group’s credit risk is attributable to receivables with
substantially all of its receivables being due from the Club
which stages The Championships on the group’s grounds
and which is one of the controlling parties (see note
25). In view of this concentration of risk, the company’s
directors are kept informed of any material changes in
the financial strength of The Championships which have
been highly profitable for many years.
Liquidity and cash flow risk
Historically, the group has been able to fund the
improvement and refurbishment of its grounds from cash
inflows generated through its facility fee and the issue of
debentures. However, as expected, in the years ended 31
July 2008 and 2009, the group’s capital expenditure on
its Long Term Plan exceeded its cash flows. As a result,
the group signed a long-term £75,000,000 secured loan
facility on 31 August 2007 which was used to fund capital
expenditure.
The loan facility is due to be repaid according to an
agreed repayment schedule using receipts from the
annual facility fee and future issues of debentures. The
directors are confident that The Championships will
continue to pay the facility fee and that the successful
applicants for the 2011-15 Centre Court debenture issue
will meet their obligation to pay a further £22,500,000 by
31 January 2011.
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On 1 August 2013, under the provisions of the 14 May 2009
agreement signed by the group, the LTA and the Club
the Club will purchase the LTA’s shares in the company
as at 1 August 2013 subject to certain conditions being
satisfied. Under the provisions of the agreement, the Club
may choose to ask the company to buy back some of its
shares by way of fulfilling its obligations to the LTA. If the
Club were to do so, the company would, in all probability,
require an extension of its existing term loan with HSBC
or to take out a new loan alongside its existing loan.
See note 1 for consideration of preparation of financial
statements on a going concern basis.
Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to interest rate risk since the interest
payable on the loan facility floats in line with LIBOR. The
directors have explored the possibility of using interest
rate swap contracts to manage this risk but, in view of
the historically low level of LIBOR, have decided not to
fix interest rates. The decision to allow interest rates to
float is reflected in the decrease in the interest payable
on bank borrowings.

7. Creditors payment policy
It is the group’s policy to ensure that all creditors are paid
in accordance with agreed terms and conditions once a
satisfactory service has been delivered. The company’s
creditor payment period for the year ended 31 July 2010
was 35 days (2009 - 33 days).

8. Directors
The directors during the year under review were:
‘A’ Directors
J A H Curry (Chairman), J S Dunningham, T D Phillips.
‘B’ Directors
P W Bretherton, D P Howorth, S G Smith.
In accordance with the Articles of Association, the three
‘A’ directors are appointed by the Club and the three
‘B’ directors by the LTA. Subject to the provisions of
the Articles of Association, one ‘A’ director and one ‘B’
director are required to retire on 31 January in each year,
but are eligible for re-appointment.
No directors’ remuneration is payable.

9. Auditors
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of
approval of this report confirms that:
(1) so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the company’s auditors are
unaware; and
(2) the director has taken all steps that he ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of S418 of the Companies
Act 2006.
Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to accept
reappointment as auditors of the company for a further
term in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006.
Approved by order of the Board of Directors and signed
on behalf of the Board
R. G. ATKINSON
Secretary
4 November 2010
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual
report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). The financial statements
are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and the group and of the profit
or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF THE ALL ENGLAND LAWN
TENNIS GROUND PLC
We have audited the financial statements of The All
England Lawn Tennis Ground plc for the year ended 31
July 2010 which comprise the consolidated profit and
loss account, the consolidated and company balance
sheets, the consolidated cash flow statement, and the
related notes 1 to 26. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the company’s members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors
and auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial
statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s
and the parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors; and the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
- give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and
the parent company’s affairs as at 31 July 2010 and of
the group’s profit for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.
Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or
- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.
Mark Goodey (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom
4 November 2010
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
Year ended 31 July

Turnover

Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 31 July

Notes

2010
£000

2009
£000

1, 2

14,726

10,713

(112)

Cost of sales
Gross Profit
Administrative expenses

(126)

14,614

10,587

(11,420)

(12,814)

Write down of fixed assets

4

-

(1,683)

Other income

4

-

1,725

Operating Profit /(loss)

3,194

Interest payable and similar charges

5

(624)

Interest receivable and other income

6

12

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation

7

2,582

Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

8

(1,262)

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation

(2,185)
(2,702)
47
(4,840)
(761)

1,320

(5,601)

6,259

6,259

7,579

658

Balance brought forward from previous year

16,503

15,845

Profit and loss account carried forward

24,082

16,503

Transfer from Championships Rebuilding Reserve
Retained profit for the financial year

18

All results are from continuing operations and there are no recognised gains or losses other than the profit disclosed in the
above profit and loss account for the current or preceding year. Accordingly, no statement of total recognised gains and losses
is presented.

Notes

2010
£000

2009
£000

Tangible assets

10

329,696

330,864

Investments

11

360

360

330,056

331,224

Fixed Assets

Current assets
Debtors - falling due within one year

12

482

2,728

Debtors - falling due after more than one year

12

6,059

6,059

Amount due from The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club

13

2,588

700

12,952

3,940

22,081

13,427

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors
Other creditors

14

(219)

(520)

(21,261)

(8,149)

(1,326)

Corporation tax payable

(22,806)
Net current (liabilities)/assets

(725)

Total assets less current liabilities

(8,669)
4,758

329,331

335,982

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

15

(55,425)

(85,025)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

16

(12,333)

(13,204)

261,573

237,753

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

17

58

58

Other reserves

18

237,433

221,192

24,082

16,503

23

261,573

237,753

Profit and loss account
Shareholders’ funds

These financial statements of The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc, company number 168491, were approved by the Board
of Directors on 4 November 2010.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors
J A H CURRY
D P HOWORTH
Directors
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 July

Company Balance Sheet
at 31 July

Notes

2010
£000

2009
£000

Tangible assets

10

329,696

330,864

Investments

11

381

381

330,077

331,245

Fixed Assets

2010
Notes

Net cash flow from operating activities

Current assets
Debtors - falling due within one year

12

482

2,728

Debtors - falling due after more than one year

12

6,059

6,059

Amount due from The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club

13

2,588

700

12,952

3,940

22,081

13,427

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors
Other creditors

14

(219)

(520)

(21,261)

(8,149)

(1,326)

Corporation tax payable

(21,806)
Net current (liabilities)/assets

(725)

Total assets less current liabilities

(8,669)
4,758

329,352

336,003

Creditors: amount falling due after more than one year

15

(55,446)

(85,046)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

16

(12,333)

(13,204)

261,573

237,753

17

58

58

Other reserves

18

237,433

221,192

Profit and loss account
Shareholders’ funds

23

24,082

16,503

261,573

237,753

£000

£000

7,017

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
12
(624)

Interest received
Interest paid
Net cash outflow from returns on
investments and servicing of finance

47
(2,702)
(612)

(2,655)

(270)

(360)

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

(9,704)

(37,984)

Cash outflow before use of liquid resources
and financing

(3,488)

(33,982)

Taxation
United Kingdom Corporation tax paid
Capital expenditure and financial investment

Financing
(10,000)

Long term loan

18,000

Debentures
-

Redemption of 2001–2005 Centre Court Series
Proceeds of Second/First Tranche 2011-2015
Centre Court Series

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year

(5)

22,500

15,000

12,500
21

These financial statements of The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc, company number 168491, were approved by the Board
of Directors on 4 November 2010.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors
J A H CURRY
D P HOWORTH
Directors
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2009
£000

7,098

20

Net cash inflow from financing

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

£000
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9,012

32,995
(987)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2010

1. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies are summarised below.
All have been applied consistently throughout the current
and preceding year for the group and the company.
(a) Accounting convention. The financial statements
are prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards.
(b) Basis of accounting. The consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of The
All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc and its subsidiary
undertakings.
(c) Tangible fixed assets. Tangible fixed assets are stated
at cost, net of depreciation. Depreciation is not provided
on freehold land. On other assets, it is provided on cost in
equal annual instalments over the estimated lives of the
assets. The rates of depreciation are as follows:
Freehold buildings, expenditure on grounds etc.
(see note 10)
2%
Pavilion at Raynes Park Sports Ground
4%
Plant and machinery
5%–10%
Fixtures and fittings
20%
Museum equipment
10%–20%
Museum exhibits, library books, films etc.
(see note 10)
0%–10%
(d) Deferred taxation. In accordance with FRS19
“Deferred Taxation”, deferred taxation is provided in
full on all timing differences that result in an obligation
at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to
pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply
when they crystallise, based on current tax rates and
law. Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items
of income and expenditure in taxation computations in
periods different from those in which they are included in
financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that
they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

Current taxation, including United Kingdom corporation
tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected
to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

2. Analysis of Turnover

Facility fees payable by the Wimbledon Museum

(e) Turnover. The figure for turnover represents sales
to third parties net of value added tax and facility fees
payable by The Championships. Turnover from the supply
of services represents the value of services provided under
contracts to the extent that there is a right to consideration
and is recorded at the value of the consideration due.
Where a contract has only been partially completed at
the balance sheet date turnover represents the value of
the service provided to date based on a proportion of the
total contract value. Where payments are received from
customers in advance of services provided, the amounts
are recorded as deferred income and included as part of
creditors due within one year.

Facility fees payable by the Lawn Tennis Association

45

45

13,425

9,415

(f) Investments. Shares in group companies are stated at
cost less provision for impairment in value. Investments
held as current assets are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
(g) Interest receivable. Interest on investments credited in
the financial statements is accrued on a day-to-day basis.
(h) Going concern. The group is funded on an ongoing
basis by the annual facility fee received from The
Championships and by the issue of debentures and since
31 August 2007 has also had a long-term secured loan
facility with HSBC (see business review on page 60). The
board of Directors is satisfied that on the basis of the
group’s cash flow projections and the funding sources in
place, it is appropriate for the financial statements to be
prepared on a going concern basis.

Facility fees payable by The Championships

Other

2009
£000

13,355

9,345

25

25

1,301

1,298

14,726

10,713

All turnover is derived in the United Kingdom.

3. Information regarding Directors and Employees
Directors’ Emoluments: The directors received no remuneration during the financial year (2009 - £nil).
No people were employed during the year (2009 – £nil) excluding directors.

4. Other income and write down of fixed assets
In 2009 the other income of £1,725,000 represented a financial settlement following a legal dispute with the architects
who specified the wood cladding of the Millennium Building. The 2009 write down of fixed assets relates to impairment
to the wood cladding of the Millennium Building ahead of refurbishment in 2010 and components of the former Court
2 complex removed as part of the Long Term Plan.

5. Interest payable and similar charges
Bank interest payable

6. Interest receivable and other income
Interest on bank deposits
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2010
£000
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2010
£000

2009
£000

624

2,702

624

2,702

2010
£000

2009
£000

12

47

12

47

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2010
continued

7. Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation

8. Tax on Profit/(loss) on Ordinary Activities

2010
£000

2009
£000

10,618

10,930

United Kingdom corporation tax at 28% (2009 – 28% )

Write down of tangible fixed assets

-

1,683

Adjustment in respect of prior years - corporation tax

Auditors’ remuneration – audit fees

22

24

Current year tax charge/(credit) for the year

Taxation services

57

68

Adjustment in respect of prior years - deferred taxation

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation is after charging:
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets

2010
£000

2009
£000

Current Tax:

Adjustment due to proposed change in rate of UK corporation tax

Fees payable to the company’s auditors for the audit
of the company’s annual accounts

22

24

Fees payable to the company’s auditors and their associates for other services
to the group – all amounts relate to tax services in both years

57

68

Total auditors’ remuneration

79

92

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the company are not required to be
disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

(22)
2,133

Deferred taxation - capital allowances in excess of depreciation (see note 16)

The analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:

2,155

Reconciliation of current year taxation charge
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax charge/(credit) on profit on ordinary activities

(1,243)
843
(471)

461
(1,200)
(739)
1,156
344
-

1,262

761

2010
£000

2009
£000

2,582

(4,840)

723

(1,355)

Factors affecting charge:
2,305

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation
Prior period adjustments

(344)

(22)

(1,200)

2,133

Current taxation charge/(credit) for the year

2,160

(873)

(739)

The Finance (No 2) Act 2010, which provides for a reduction in the main rate of corporation tax from 28% to 27%
effective from 1 April 2011, was substantively enacted on 21 July 2010. The rate reduction is reflected in the
determination of the tax charge above.
The Government has also indicated that it intends to enact future reductions in the main tax rate of 1% each year down
to 24% by 1 April 2014. The future 1% main tax rate reductions are expected to have a similar impact on our financial
statements as outlined above, however the actual impact will be dependent on our tax position at that time.

9. Profit of Parent Company
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the parent company is not
presented as part of these financial statements. The consolidated profit and loss account includes a profit after
taxation of £1,320,000 (2009: loss of £5,601,000) which is attributable to the parent company.
The balance on the profit and loss account of the parent company carried forward, after adding the profit after taxation
for the financial year and after transferring £6,259,000 from the Championships Rebuilding Reserve (2009: transferring
£6,259,000 from the Championships Rebuilding Reserve), is a surplus of £24,082,000 (2009: £16,503,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2010
continued

10. Tangible Fixed Assets

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

11. Investments held as Fixed Assets
Freehold
land &
buildings
£000

Plant &
equipment
£000

Exhibits,
films &
library books
£000

Total
£000

Cost
At 1 August 2009
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

379,856

1,642

1,329

382,827

11,867

-

54

11,921

-

-

389,252

1,642

1,383

392,277

Depreciation
At 1 August 2009

49,537

1,642

784

51,963

Charge for the year

10,618

-

-

10,618

Total at 31 July 2010

60,155

1,642

784

62,581

Net book value
31 July 2010

329,097

-

599

329,696

31 July 2009

330,319

-

545

330,864

Total at 31 July 2010

(2,471)

(2,471)

Depreciation is not charged on freehold land with a cost of £8,749,000 (2009: £8,749,000).
The additions to fixed assets include £11,867,000 (2009: £41,836,000) of expenditure on the Long Term Plan for the
development of the Wimbledon grounds. The disposals represent the release of an accrual for the final costs of the
development of Centre Court and the new Court 2.
Freehold land and buildings have been provided as security against the loan (see note 15).

THE GROUP

THE COMPANY

2010
£000

2009
£000

2010
£000

2009
£000

360

360

360

360

-

-

21

21

360

360

381

381

Country of
Registration

Activity

Class of
Share

% Shares
Held

The All England Motor Park Limited

England & Wales

Dormant

Ordinary

100

The Wimbledon Lawn Tennis Museum Limited

England & Wales

Dormant

Ordinary

100

The Queen’s Club
Shares in subsidiary undertakings at cost

At 31 July 2009, the following undertakings were subsidiaries of the company:

12. Debtors

THE GROUP

THE COMPANY

2010
£000

2009
£000

2010
£000

2009
£000

1

Falling due within one year:
58

1

58

VAT

-

9

-

9

Corporation tax

-

537

-

537

424

2,181

424

2,181

482

2,728

482

2,728

LTA

6,059

6,059

6,059

6,059

Total debtors

6,541

8,787

6,541

8,787

Trade debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Due after more than one year:

The loan to the LTA is not repayable before 2013.

the championships
74

wimbledon
75

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2010
continued

15. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

13. Amount due from The Club in respect of The Championships, Wimbledon

THE GROUP

The following related party transactions have occurred during the year ended 31 July 2010 with the Club
THE GROUP
£000

THE COMPANY
£000

700

700

13,380

13,380

Due from the Club at 1 August 2009
Facility fees payable by The Championships
Interface costs payable by The Championships
VAT charged in year
Payments

820

820

2,155

2,155

(15,184)

Sundry costs and receipts recharged
Due from the Club at 31 July 2010

(15,184)

717

717

2,588

2,588

In accordance with FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, transactions with other undertakings within the group have not been
disclosed in these financial statements.

THE COMPANY

2010
£000

2009
£000

2010
£000

2009
£000

75,000

50,000

75,000

50,000

The All England Motor Park Limited

-

-

21

21

Debentures: 2006-2010 Centre Court Series

-

4,600

-

4,600

Loan

Debentures: 2007-2011 No.1 Court Series
Debentures: 2011-2015 Centre Court Series

425

425

425

425

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

55,425

85,025

55,446

85,046

The loan is secured on the freehold property known as the All England Lawn Tennis Ground, Church Road, Wimbledon. Interest
is payable at a floating rate based on LIBOR. The loan is repayable based on an agreed repayment schedule by 31 January
2015. Those repayments that are due on or before 31 July 2011 are shown within other creditors.
The 2007-2011 No.1 Court debentures which are free of interest and unsecured are repayable at par on 1 August 2011.
The 2011-2015 Centre Court debentures which are free of interest and unsecured are repayable at par on 3 August 2015.

14. Other Creditors

THE GROUP
2010
£000

VAT
Debenture creditors
Other creditors
Loan

The loan from The All England Motor Park Limited is interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.

THE COMPANY

2009
£000

2010
£000

2009
£000

327

-

327

-

4,835

235

4,835

235
7,914

1,099

7,914

1,099

15,000

-

15,000

-

21,261

8,149

21,261

8,149

The amount that falls due after more than five years is £5,000,000 (2009: £20,000,000).

Included within debenture creditors is £4,600,000 relating to the 2006-2010 Centre Court debentures which are free of interest,
unsecured and are repayable at par on 2 August 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2010
continued

16. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation movement for the year:

At 1 August

THE GROUP

18. Other Reserves

THE COMPANY

2010
£000

2009
£000

2010
£000

2009
£000

13,204

11,704

13,204

11,704

THE GROUP

Charge to profit and loss account

At 1 August 2009

Deferred taxation

Debenture premiums received

- current year

Transferred to profit and loss account

843

- prior year
- change in rate

843

(1,243)

1,156

(1,243)

(471)

-

(471)

12,333

At 31 July

344

13,204

12,333

344
1,156

Debenture Championships
Premium
Rebuilding
Reserve
Reserve
£000
£000

2010
£000

Analysis of deferred tax

2009
£000

THE COMPANY
2010
£000

25,034

56

221,192

22,500

-

-

22,500

(6,259)

-

(6,259)

218,602

18,775

56

237,433

£000

£000

£000

£000

196,102

25,034

56

221,192

22,500

-

-

22,500

13,204

THE COMPANY

At 1 August 2009
THE GROUP

TOTAL
£000

196,102
-

At 31 July 2010

Other
Reserves
£000

2009
£000

Capital allowances in excess of depreciation

12,333

13,204

12,333

13,204

Closing balance

12,333

13,204

12,333

13,204

Debenture premiums received
Transferred to profit and loss account

-

At 31 July 2010

(6,259)

218,602

18,775

56

(6,259)
237,433

The Championships Rebuilding Reserve was established to set aside funds to meet the potential long term rebuilding costs
of facilities for staging The Championships. The reserve will be transferred to the profit and loss account over the next five
years as the group incurs higher depreciation related to the Centre Court building project. Accordingly the reserve will be fully
transferred by 31 July 2013.
Other Reserves comprise the Lord Ritchie Library Fund and General Reserve.

17. Called up Share Capital

2010
£

2009
£

The reserves are all non-distributable.

Authorised, called up, allotted and fully paid
29,078 ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of £1 each

29,078

29,078

29,078 ‘B’ Ordinary Shares of £1 each

29,078

29,078

58,156

58,156

19. Capital commitments

THE GROUP

The ‘A’ Ordinary Shares and ‘B’ Ordinary Shares rank pari passu.

Contracted but not provided for in these accounts

The beneficial ownership of the ‘A’ Ordinary shares rests with the Club; the beneficial ownership of the ‘B’ Ordinary shares rests
with the LTA.

These capital commitments relate wholly to the Long Term Plan.

the championships
78

wimbledon
79

THE COMPANY

2010
£000

2009
£000

2010
£000

2009
£000

9,272

19,211

9,272

19,211

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 July 2010
continued

20. Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2010
£000

3,194

Operating Profit/(loss)

10,618

Depreciation charge

-

Write down of fixed assets

(2,185)

Profit/(loss) for the year

10,930

Premium on 2,500 Centre Court debentures

1,320

(5,601)

22,500

10,000

1,683

Opening shareholders’ funds

237,753

233,354

Closing shareholders’ funds

261,573

237,753

(6,534)

(895)

7,098

7,017

2010
£000

2009
£000

9,012

(987)

10,000

(18,000)

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year

-

Redemption 2001-2005 Centre Court debenture series

5

(22,500)

(15,000)

Change in net funds resulting from cash flows

(3,488)

(33,982)

Transfer debenture premiums to reserves

22,500

10,000

19,012

(23,982)

Net funds at 1 August 2009 and 1 August 2008

(81,320)

(57,338)

Net funds at 31 July 2010 and 31 July 2009

(62,308)

(81,320)

Second/First tranche 2011-2015 Centre Court debenture series

2009
£000

(2,516)

21. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

Cash outflow/(inflow) from long term loans

2010
£000

(180)

(Increase) in debtors
(Decrease) in creditors

23. Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
2009
£000

The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc includes as liquid resources term deposits of less than one year.

In the opinion of the directors, the nature of the premiums received on the debentures is not a finance item within the spirit
of Financial Reporting Standard 4. The premiums are received by the company because the debentures carry the privilege to
receive Centre and No.1 Court tickets for future Championships. This privilege is conveyed by the shareholders of the company,
rather than by the company itself, and accordingly the premiums received are recognised as a movement in Shareholders’
Funds. The value of the Centre and No.1 Court tickets for the 2010 Championships was £2,259,234.

24. Pension Scheme
All of the employees of The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc and its subsidiaries, and their associated pension
benefits and obligations, were transferred to the Club on 1 October 2004.
Eligible former employees of The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc and its subsidiaries are members of The All
England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club Pension and Assurance Scheme, a defined benefit scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held in separate Trustee-administered funds.
The group has had no employees since 1 October 2004, and therefore no financial obligations are reported in these
accounts under FRS17.

25. Controlling Party
The beneficial ownership of The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc rests jointly, 50% with the Club and 50% with
the LTA.

22. Analysis of net funds

Cash at bank and in hand
Long term loan
Debentures due within one year

At 1 August
2009
£000

Cash Flow
£000

At 31 July
2010
£000

3,940

9,012

12,952

(75,000)

10,000

(65,000)

(4,600)

(4,835)

(235)

Debentures due after one year

the championships
80

(10,025)

4,600

(5,425)

(81,320)

19,012

(62,308)

26. Subsequent Events
Since 1 August 2010, the group has refunded substantially all of the £4,600,000 nominal value of the Centre Court
debentures relating to the 2006-10 Championships. Under the terms of the debenture prospectus, the group was
contractually committed to refund the nominal value of a debenture on 2 August 2010 provided that the holder of
the debenture had returned the relevant debenture certificate.
In September 2010, the company and the Club signed a “venue use agreement” with the London Organising Committee
of the Olympic Games and Paralympic Games Limited (“LOCOG”) which sets out the terms and conditions under
which the company’s grounds will be used by LOCOG to stage the tennis event at the 2012 London Olympics.
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Part 9 – Further Information

1. Responsibility

Three Directors, including the Chairman, are appointed by
the Club and three Directors are appointed by the LTA.

The Company accepts responsibility for the information
contained in this Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge
of the Company (which has taken all reasonable care to
ensure that such is the case), the information contained
in this Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and
does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such
information.

2. Incorporation and Memorandum of
Association
The Company was incorporated in England and Wales on
23 June 1920 under the Companies Acts 1908 to 1917 with
company registration number 168491 as The All England
Lawn Tennis Ground Limited, a private company limited
by shares. On 24 January 1996, the Company re-registered
under the Companies Act 1985 as a public limited company
with the name The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc.
The liability of the members is limited.
The Memorandum of Association of the Company
provides that its principal objects are:
- to carry on the business of a property investment
company; to carry into effect an agreement between the
Club (1), the LTA (2), the Company (3) and The All England
Lawn Tennis Club (Wimbledon) Limited (4) relating to
The Championships on land and premises owned by the
Company situated at Church Road, Somerset Road and
Bathgate Road, Wimbledon, London; and
- to hold land and premises situated at Wimbledon for
the purpose of The Championships and for the use and
benefit of the Club.

3. Share Capital

Brief biographical details of each of the Directors are set
out below.
J A H Curry CBE FCA
Mr Curry qualified as a Chartered Accountant and
subsequently spent most of his business career in the
electronics industry. From 1966 to 1986 he was Joint
Chief Executive of Unitech plc. He then left Unitech to
found Acal plc of which he was Chairman until 2005,
while remaining a non-executive director of Unitech until
1996. He was also non-executive Chairman of Foreign
and Colonial Smaller Companies plc, a director of Dixons
Group plc and other lesser known public and private
companies in the UK and overseas.
He has been a member of the Club since 1971 and joined
the Committee in December 1979. He was Chairman of
the Club and the Committee of Management of The
Championships from December 1989 until December
1999. He became a Director of the Company in 1986 and
Chairman in 1990.
P W Bretherton
Mr Bretherton joined Provident Financial plc in 1977 as
Company Solicitor, became Company Secretary in 1978
and joined the Main Board in 1983. He retired from the
board and full-time employment in 2001 and became a
part-time consultant until 2003.
He has been a member of the Committee of Management
of The Championships since 2003. He joined the LTA
Council in 1995 representing Lancashire and, from 2001,
has been a Main Board member. He became a Director
of the Company on 31 January 2006.

Number of issued
Ordinary Shares

Percentage of
issued Ordinary
Share capital

He was Deputy President of the LTA in 2009 and 2010 and
was elected President in December 2010.

The Club

29,078

50.0

The LTA

29,078

50.0

P G H Brook FIA
Mr Brook joined M&G Reinsurance as a trainee actuary in
1977. He became a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries
in 1984. In 1991, he joined R. Watson and Sons (now
Towers Watson) and became a Partner in 1992. From
2003 to 2009 he was a Global Practice Director of the
firm’s Insurance and Financial Services Practice. He
retired from the firm in June 2009.

Shareholder

4. Directors and Senior Managers
Directors
The Company’s Board comprises six non-executive
Directors. The Directors and their respective roles are:
J A H Curry CBE FCA Chairman
P W Bretherton Director
P G H Brook FIA Director
J S Dunningham OBE Director
Miss V F Gooding CBE Director
S G Smith OBE FRICS Director

He has been a member of the Club since 1989, joined
the Committee in December 1997 and became Chairman
of the Club and the Committee of Management of The
Championships and a Director of the Company on 8
December 2010.
J S Dunningham OBE
Mr Dunningham was articled to and employed for seven
years by two firms of Chartered Surveyors and Estate
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Agents prior to starting up his own business principally
involved in property development and investment.
Recently, his company mainly manages his personal
commercial property investments.
He became a member of the Club in 1995, joined the
Committee in 1996 and became a Director of the
Company on 14 February 2002.
Mr Dunningham has been Chairman of the Long Term
Planning Committee since 1999.
miss v f gooding cbe
Miss Gooding was Chief Executive of Bupa for 10 years
until May 2008. Prior to joining Bupa, she held several
senior positions at British Airways.
Miss Gooding is a non-executive director of J Sainsbury
plc, Standard Chartered Bank plc, the BBC, the LTA and
is lead non-executive director at the Home Office. She is
a member of the Advisory Board of the Warwick Business
School, a Trustee and deputy chairman of the British
Museum and a Trustee of the Rose Theatre Kingston.
She has been a member of the Committee of Management
of The Championships since 2007 and became a Director
of the Company on 31 January 2011.
S G Smith OBE FRICS
Mr Smith, a Chartered Surveyor by profession, ran his City
practice, Collier and Madge, until 1985 and was subsequently
a Director of Lambert Smith Hampton until 2002.
Since the mid 1980s he has been involved in tennis
administration as a volunteer at county and national
levels; and as one of Kent LTA’s representatives he joined
the LTA Council in 1990 and the Main Board in 1995. He
became LTA President in December 2005, chairing the
Main Board during his term which finished in December
2008; previously, he had chaired its National Facilities
Division, its National Development Division and the
Indoor Tennis Initiative.
He has been a member of the Club since 2005, and
became a Director of the Company on 31 January 1997.
He has been a member of the Committee of Management
of The Championships since 1997. He was elected to the
Board of The International Tennis Federation in 2009.

Senior managers
The following individuals are senior managers (the
“Senior Managers”) of the Company:
R G Atkinson FCMA
Mr Atkinson is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and has been Secretary of the
Company and Financial Director of the Club since 2007.

He had previously worked for 14 years at Time Warner
Inc., one of the world’s largest media companies, spending
the last six years in New York as Chief Financial Officer of
Time Inc., the company’s magazine and book publishing
division. Prior to that, he held financial positions in the
real estate, construction and banking industries.
R K Narain
Mr Narain spent five years articled with a firm of Chartered
Accountants before working overseas with an electronics
company. On his return to the UK in 1980, he joined Keith
Prowse & Co Ltd as a Financial Accountant before joining
the Company in 1987 as Assistant Secretary/Debenture
Manager.

Mr Curry and Mr Dunningham each own shares in
Galliford Try Plc, which provides construction services
to the Company. The Directors and Senior Managers may
apply for Debentures; the possible conflict of interest
here arises because those persons are responsible for
the pricing and allocation of the Debentures.
Save as aforesaid, there are no conflicts or potential
conflicts of interest between any of the Directors’ or
Senior Managers’ duties to the Company and their private
interests.
The current business address of each of the Directors and
Senior Managers is: The All England Lawn Tennis Ground
plc, Church Road, Wimbledon, London, SW19 5AE.

5. Board practices
The Directors do not consider it appropriate to have an
audit committee given the Company’s size and nature
of its business.
The Directors recognise the importance of sound
corporate governance. The Company complies with the
main provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Financial Reporting Council save where
such provisions relate to executive remuneration, board
appointments and re-election as the Company is jointly
owned by the LTA and the Club, is not a listed company
and the Board consists entirely of non-executive Directors
appointed by the shareholders.

6. Material contracts
Save as set out in this paragraph 6, no member of the
Group has entered into any material contract (not being
a contract entered into in the ordinary course of the
Company’s business) which could result in any member of
the Group being under an obligation or entitlement that is
material to the Company’s ability to meet its obligations
to Debenture Holders in respect of the Debentures.
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By virtue of an agreement dated 15 May 1934, as
supplemented and amended by further agreements dated
20 September 1950 and 30 November 1966 between
the Club (1), the LTA (2) and the Company (3) and as
further supplemented and amended by an agreement
dated 11 August 1993 between the Club (1), the LTA (2),
the Company (3) and The All England Lawn Tennis Club
(Wimbledon) Limited (4), and as further supplemented by
an agreement dated 14 May 2009 between the Club (1),
the LTA (2), and the Company (3), each party undertakes
to use its best endeavours to ensure, inter alia, that The
Championships shall continue to be held at the Grounds
or at such other site as may be agreed between the Club
and the LTA for the duration of the agreement (which
is terminable on 31 July 2053) during the annual two
week period in which they are held. It is intended that
this agreement will be supplemented by further amended
and restated agreements entered into between variously
the Company, the Club, the LTA, The All England Lawn
Tennis & Croquet Club Limited and its subsidiary The All
England Lawn Tennis Club (Championships) Limited, LTA
CLG Limited and its subsidiary LTA Operations Limited
in contemplation of the incorporation of the Club and
the LTA.
By virtue of the HSBC Loan Facility the Company
borrowed £75 million at an annual interest rate of LIBOR
plus 0.3 per cent, £10 million of which has been repaid
and the remainder of which is to be repaid in instalments
between now and 31 January 2015.

8. Legal and arbitration proceedings
There are no governmental, legal or arbitration
proceedings (including any such proceedings which are
pending or threatened of which the Company is aware),
during the twelve months preceding the date of this
Prospectus, which may have, or have had in the recent
past, significant effects on the Group’s financial position
or profitability.

9. Trend information and significant
change
There has been no significant change in the financial or
trading position of the Group since 31 July 2010, the date
of the last published audited statement of accounts.
There has been no material adverse change in the
prospects of the Group since 31 July 2010.

10. Money laundering regulations
To ensure compliance with the Money Laundering
Regulations and the Joint Money Laundering Steering
Group’s Guidance, the Company is required to obtain
information from independent sources to identify and
verify the identity of any person lodging an Application
Form (an “applicant”) including, without limitation, an
applicant who:
(1) tenders payment by way of a cheque or banker’s draft
drawn on an account in his sole or joint name;

7. Sale of the LTA’s shares in the
Company
By virtue of an agreement dated 14 May 2009 between
the Club and the LTA, the Club has agreed to purchase,
and/or procure the buy-back by the Company, of all
of the shares owned by the LTA in the Company for a
consideration of £55 million. The agreement is due to
complete on 1 August 2013, subject and conditional
on the holding of The Championships in 2013. The
Club and/or the Company shall pay £30 million of the
consideration to the LTA on completion and the balance
by five instalments of £5 million each (plus interest at
the rate of 1 per cent above the Bank of England base
rate on the outstanding deferred consideration) on
1 August in each of the years 2014-2018 inclusive. The
Club may elect for it and/or the Company to pay more
than £30 million of initial consideration at completion.
Any amounts paid in excess of £30 million shall reduce the
deferred consideration instalments in chronological order.
The Club must give written notice to the LTA on or prior to
31 March 2013 if it wishes to designate the Company as the
purchaser of any of the LTA’s shares and/or to pay more
than £30 million of the consideration at completion. It is
intended that this agreement will be ultimately novated
to The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club Limited
following the proposed incorporation of the Club.

(2) tenders payment by way of a cheque or banker’s draft
drawn on an account in the name of a person or persons
other than the applicant; or
(3) appears to the Company to be acting on behalf of
some other person or persons.
In the first case, the Company may decide in its absolute
discretion to accept a payment drawn on the applicant’s
sole or joint account as satisfactory evidence of the
applicant’s identity. In the second case, additional
evidence satisfactory to the Company of the identity of
the applicant may be required. In the latter case, evidence
satisfactory to the Company of the identity of any person
on whose behalf the applicant appears to be acting will
also be required in addition to evidence of the identity
of the applicant.
Pending the provision of evidence to identify the
applicant, the Company may in its absolute discretion
retain the Application Form lodged by an applicant and/
or the cheque or other remittance relating thereto.
Failure to provide the necessary evidence of identity may
result in applications lapsing or being terminated.
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If, within a reasonable period following a request for
verification of identity, the Company has not received
evidence satisfactory to it as aforesaid, the Company
may at its absolute discretion determine to treat as
invalid such Application Form, in which event the monies
payable on application will be returned without interest to
the account at the drawee bank from which such monies
were originally debited. Where payment has been made
by cheque, the cheque will be returned to the applicant’s
last known address.
The Company shall not be responsible or have any
liability for loss or damage arising from the election by
the Company to treat an Application Form lodged by
any applicant as invalid, as a result of the Company not
having received from the applicant evidence as to identify
the applicant reasonably satisfactory within a reasonable
time after request.
In order to reduce the likelihood of delays or of applications
being terminated, applicants for Debentures should
ideally make payment by means of a cheque drawn on
the applicant’s account. If this is not practicable and an
applicant uses a cheque drawn by a third party or a building
society cheque or banker’s draft, the applicant should:
- write the name and address and, in the case of
individuals, date of birth of the applicant on the back of
the cheque, building society cheque or banker’s draft;
- if payment is made by building society cheque (not
being a cheque drawn on an account of the applicant)
or banker’s draft, ask the building society or bank to
endorse on the cheque or banker’s draft the name and
account number of the person whose building society or
bank account is being debited and add its stamp; and
- if delivering an Application Form by hand, ensure that
they have with them evidence of identity bearing their
photograph (e.g. a passport).
The Company may (at its sole discretion) treat an
Application Form as valid and binding on the person(s)
by whom or on whose behalf it is lodged, even if it is not
completed in accordance with the relevant instructions
or is not accompanied by a valid power of attorney where
required.

11. Overseas applications
This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell, nor the
solicitation of an offer to buy, Debentures in any jurisdiction
in which such offer or solicitation is unlawful and, subject
to certain exceptions, is not being mailed or otherwise
distributed or sent in or into the United States, Canada,
Australia, South Africa or Japan. The Debentures have not
been and will not be registered under the US Securities

Act or under the applicable securities laws of Canada,
Australia, South Africa or Japan and may not, subject as
provided below, be offered, sold, transferred, taken up or
delivered in the United States, Canada, Australia, South
Africa or Japan.
No person receiving a copy of the Prospectus and
Application Form in any territory other than the United
Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man may
treat the same as constituting an invitation to offer to
him, nor should he in any event use the Application Form
unless in the relevant territory such an invitation or offer
could lawfully be made to him and the Application Form
could lawfully be used without contravention of any
regulation or other legal requirement. It is a condition
of any application by any person outside the United
Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man that he
has satisfied himself as to the full observance of the laws
of any relevant territory, including the obtaining of any
governmental or other consents which may be required
and has observed any other formalities needing to be
observed in such territory.
The Company reserves the right, but shall not be obliged,
to treat as invalid any application which appears to the
Company or its agents to have been executed, affected
or dispatched in a manner which may involve a breach of
the laws or regulatory requirements of any jurisdiction.
Notwithstanding any other statement in this Prospectus
or the Application Form, the Company reserves the
right to permit a person outside the United Kingdom,
the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man to apply for
Debentures if the Company is satisfied that such action
would not result in a contravention of any applicable legal
or regulatory requirement.

12. Documents on display
Copies of the documents listed below may be inspected
free of charge at the offices of CMS Cameron McKenna
LLP, Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London EC1A
4DD during normal business hours on any weekday
(Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) up
to and including 10 June 2011:
(a) the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company; and
(b) the audited statutory consolidated accounts of the
Company for the two financial years ended 31 July 2009
and 31 July 2010.
Dated: 26 April 2011
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definitions

The following definitions apply throughout this
Prospectus and in the Application Form, except where
the context requires otherwise:

“Existing Debenture Holders’ Application Form”
the application form for use by holders of the current
No.1 Court Debentures of the 2007-2011 Series

“Application Form”
the application form for use by new applicants and, where
the context requires, the Existing Debenture Holders’
Application Form

“Grounds”
the Company’s grounds in Wimbledon, London
SW19 5AE

“Board” or “Directors”
the directors of the Company
“The Championships”
the annual Wimbledon Lawn Tennis Championships
“Championships Privileges”
the rights given to Debenture Holders pursuant to the
Conditions

“Group”
the Company and its subsidiaries
“HSBC Loan Facility”
the Sterling loan facility agreement dated 31 August
2007 between the Company and HSBC, repayable in
instalments up to and including 31 January 2015
“Issue”
the Debenture Issue

“Club” or “AELTC”
The All England Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club

“ITF”
the International Tennis Federation

“Company”
The All England Lawn Tennis Ground plc

“Long Term Plan”
the long term plan for the Club and The Championships
announced in March 1993

“Conditions”
the terms and conditions of the Debentures set out in
Part 5 of this Prospectus

“LTA”
the Lawn Tennis Association

“Debenture” or “new No.1 Court Debenture”
the debenture having a nominal value of £500 and having
attached to it the Championships Privileges

“Money Laundering Regulations” or “Regulations”
The Money Laundering Regulations which came into
force on 15 December 2007

“Debenture Certificate”
the certificate to be issued to Debenture Holders

“Prospectus”
this document, which sets out, inter alia, the terms and
conditions of the Debenture Issue

“Debenture Holder”
the registered holder for the time being of a Debenture
including his successors in title and personal
representatives
“Debenture Issue”
the proposed issue of up to 1,000 Debentures as
described in this Prospectus
“Evolution Securities”
Evolution Securities Limited of 100 Wood Street, London
EC2V 7AN

“Prospectus Rules”
The Prospectus Rules brought into effect on 1 July 2005
pursuant to Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004
“US Securities Act”
the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended
“Wimbledon Fortnight”
The Championships, which take place for a two-week
period, generally starting in late June
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